#2020-02

ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD
APPLICATION FOR PERMIT

SECTION I. IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATION

This Section must be completed for all projects. R Ec E l VE D

Facility/Project Identification JAN 8 2020

Facility Name: University of lllinois Medical Center at Chicago fU‘MﬁﬂkB%EﬁIEE‘

Street Address: Intersection of Taylor Street and Wood Street  SERVICES REVIEWBOARD——

City and Zip Code: _ Chicago, IL 80612

County: Cook Health Service Area. Vi Health Planning Area. A-02

Applicant(s) [Provide for each applicant (refer to Part 1130.220)]

['Exact Legal Name: The Board of Trustees of the University of lllinois,
a state body corporate and politic of the State of Illingis

Street Address: 364 Henry Administration Building (MC364) 506 S. Wright Street
City and Zip Code: Urbana, IL 61801
Name of Registered Agent: Dedra M. Williams, Secretary to the Board of Trustees

Registered Agent Street Address: 364 Henry Administration Building (MC364) 506 S. Wright Street

Registered Agent City and Zip Code: Urbana, il. 61801

Name of Chief Executive Officer: Timothy Killeen, President, University of Illinois

CEQ Street Address. 364 Henry Administration Building (MC364) 506 S. anht Street
CEQ City and Zip Code: Urbana, IL 61801

CEQ Telephone Number; 217/333-3070

Type of Ownership of Applicants

| Non-profit Corporation O Partnership
] For-profit Corporation X Governmental
] Limited Liability Company OJ Sole Proprietorship O Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an Illinois certificate of good

standing.
o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which they are organized and the name and

address of each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 1 IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

Primary Contact [Person to receive ALL correspondence or inquiries}

Name: Jacob M. Axel

Title: President

Company Name: Axel & Associates, Inc.

Address. 675 North Court, Suite 210 Palatine, IL 60067
Telephone Number:  847/776-7101

E-mail Address:. jacobmaxel@msn.com

Fax Number, 847/776-7101

Additional Contact [Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for
exemption]

Name: ngne

Title:

Company Name:

Address:

Telephone Number:

E-mai! Address:

Fax Number:




#2020-02

Post Permit Contact
[Person to receive all correspondence subsequent to permit issuance-THIS PERSON MUST BE
EMPLOYED BY THE LICENSED HEALTH CARE FACILITY AS DEFINED AT 20 ILCS 3960]

Name: David M. Loffing

Title: Chief Operating Officer

Company Name: University of lllinois Hospital & Health Sciences System
Address: 1740 W. Tayior Strest Suite 1400 Chicago, IL 60612
Telephone Number:  312/996-3900

E-mail Address: dhloff@uic.edu

Fax Number; 312/996-7049

Site Ownership
[Provide this information for each applicable site]

Exact Legal Name of Site Owner. The Board of Trustees of the University of lllinois,
a state body corporate and politic of the State of |ilinois

Address of Site Owner: 364 Henry Administration Building (MC364) 506 S. Wright Street Urbana 61801

Street Address or Legal Description of the Site; Intersection of Taylor Street and Wood Street

Chicago, IL 60612
Proof of ownership or control of the site is to be provided as Attachment 2. Examples of proof of awnership
are property tax statements, tax asseasor's documentation, deed, notarized statement of the corporation

attesting to ownership, an option to lease, a letter of intent to lease, or a [ease.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 2. IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
| APPLICATION FORM. i _

Operating Identity/Licensee
[Provide this information for each applicable facility and insert after this page.]

Exact Legal Name: please see ATTACHMENT 3

Address:

(1 Non-profit Corporation | Partnhership

[ For-profit Corporation X Governmental

| Limited Liability Company J Sole Proprietorship O Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lllinois Certificate of Good Standing.

o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of
each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

o Persons with 5 percent or greater interest in the licensee must be identified with the % of
ownership,

APPEND BOCUMEI‘ITATION AS ATTACHMENT. 3, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM. : AL

Organizational Relationships

Provide (for each applicant) an organizational chart containing the name and relationship of any person or |
entity who is related (as defined in Part 1130.140). if the related person or entity is participating in the
development or funding of the project, describe the interest and the amount and type of any financial

| contribution.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT. 4, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM. g L 7
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Flood Plain Requirements
[Refer to application instructions.] Rt G e e aTT o

Provide documentation that the project complies with the requirements of lllinois Executive Order #2006-5
pertaining to construction activities in special flood hazard areas. As part of the flood plain requirements, |
please provide a map of the proposed project location showing any identified floodplain areas. Floodplain |
maps can be printed at www.FEMA.gov or www.illinoisfloodmaps.orq. This map must be in a
readable format. In addition, please provide a statement aftesting that the project complies with the

_requirements of llinois Executive Order #2008-5 {http://www.hfsrb.illinois.qov).

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT &, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM. i ) ]

Historic Resources Preservation Act Requirements
[Refer to application instructions.] e o o
Provide documentation regarding compliance with the requirements of the Historic Resources _
Preservation Act. s o |

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 6, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT

1. Project Classification

[Check those applicable - refer to Part 1110,20 and Part 1120.20(b)]
Part 1110 Classification:

O Substantive

X Non-substantive

S



#2020-02

2. Narrative Description

In the space below, provide a brief narrative description of the project. Explain WHAT is to be done in
State Board defined terms, NOT WHY it is being done. If the project site does NOT have a street
address, include a legal description of the site. Include the rationale regarding the project's classification
as substantive or non-substantive.

The applicant proposes a construction and renovation project, the primary focus of which
is the replacement of an existing lobby with a new, two-story lobby, to include public/family
seating, a registration and check-in area, a security station and office, meditation and pastoral
care areas, conference rooms, and mechanical spaces to serve the lobby. The project involves
no HFSRB-designated “categories of service’, or any other clinical areas. As such, the project
is classified as “non-substantive”.

The hospital is located at the intersection of Taylor Street and Wood Street, in Chicago.

5

|



Project Costs and Sources of Funds
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Complete the following table listing all costs (refer to Part 1120.110) associated with the project. When a

project or any component of a project is to be accomplished by lease, donation, gift, or other means, the
fair market or dollar value (refer to Part 1130.140) of the component must be included in the estimated
project cost. If the project contains non-reviewable components that are not related to the provision of
health care, complete the second column of the table below. Note, the use and sources of funds must be

equal.

Project Costs and Sources of Funds

USE OF FUNDS CLINICAL NONCLINICAL TOTAL

Preplanning Costs $959,725 $059,725
Site Survey and Soil Investigation $14,000 $14,000
Site Preparation $682,725 $682,725
Off Site Work
New Construction Contracts $9,126,995 $9,126,995
Modernization Contracts $969,800 $969,800
Contingencies $2,9156,880 $2,915 880
Architectural/Engineering Fees $1,054,515 $1,054,515
Consulting and Other Fees $1,945,560 $1,945,560
Movable or Other Equipment {not in construction
contracts) $330,800 $330,800
Bond Issuance Expense (project related)
Net Interest Expense During Construction (project
related)
Fair Market Value of Leased Space or Equipment
Other Costs To Be Capitalized
rcccq;;isition of Building or Other Property (excluding
an
TOTAL USES OF FUNDS $18,000,000 $18,000,000

SOURCE OF FUNDS CLINICAL NONCLINICAL TOTAL
Cash and Securities $18,000,000 $18,000,000
Pledges
Gifts and Beguests
Bond Issues (project related)
Mortgages
Leases (fair market value)
Governmental Apprapriations
Grants
Other Funds and Sources
TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS $18,000,000 $18,000,000

' NOTE: ITEMIZATION OF EACH LINE [TEM MUST BE PROVIDED AT ATTACHMENT 7, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER

THE LAST PAGE OF THE APPLICATICN FORM.
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Flood Plain Requirements
[Refer to application instructions.]

Provide documentation that the project complies with the reguirements of Illinois Executive Order #2006-5
pertaining to construction activities in special flood hazard areas. As part of the flood plain requirements,
please provide a map of the proposed project location showing any identified fioodplain areas. Floodplain
maps can be printed at www.FEMA.gov or www. lliinoisfloodmaps.org. This map must be in a
readable format. In addition, please provide a statement attesting that the project complies with the |
_requirements of llinois Executive Order #2006-5 (hitp:/fwww.hfsrb.ilinois.gov). . |

I
APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS Amgumgm IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
_APPLICATION FORM.

Historic Resources Preservation Act Requirements
[Refer to application instructions.]

Provide documentation regarding compllance - with the requirements of the Historic Resources
Preservation Act.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 6, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT

1. Project Classification
[Check those applicable - refer to Part 1110.20 and Part 1120.20(b}}

Part 1110 Classification:

O Substantive

X Non-substantive
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Cost Space Requirements

Provide in the following format, the Departmental Gross Square Feet (DGSF) or the Building Gross
Square Feet (BGSF) and cost. The type of gross square footage either DGSF or BGSF must be
identified. The sum of the department costs MUST equal the total estimated project costs. Indicate if any
space is being reallocated for a different purpose. Include outside wall measurements plus the
department's or area’s portion of the surrounding circulation space. Explain the use of any vacated
space.

[ Gross Square Feet Amount of Propose_:_lh'l;ctztlz[ Gross Square Feet

New Vacated

Dept. / Area Coit Existing | Proposed Const. Modernized | Asls Space

REVIEWABLE

Medical Surgical | ~
Intensive Care .

Diagnostic
Radiology

MRI

Total Clinical

NON
REVIEWABLE

Administrative

Parking

Gift Shop

Total Non-clinical ]

LLIE S . . .
APPEND DOCUMENTATION A8 ATTACHMENT.9, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE

'APPLICATION FORM.




Facility Bed Capacity and Utilization
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Complete the following chart, as applicable. Complete a separate chart for each facility that is a part of
the project and insert the chart after this page. Provide the existing bed capacity and utilization data for
the latest Calendar Year for which data is available. Include observation days in the patient day
Any bed capacity discrepancy from the Inventory will result in the

application being deemed incomplete.

totals for each bed service.

FACILITY NAME: University of lllinois Medical CITY: cChicago

Center at Chicago
REPORTING PERIOD DATES: From: January 1, 2018 to: December 31, 2018
Category of Service Authorized | Admissions | Patient Days | Bed Proposed

Beds Changes Beds

Medical/Surgical 240 11,381 60,592 None 240
Obstetrics 45 2,350 7,035 None 45
Pediatrics 32 648 2,245 None 32
Intensive Care 65 2,949 21,506 None 65
Comprehensive Physical
Rehabilitation
Acute/Chronic Mental lliness 50 987 11,906 None 50
Neonatal intensive Care 30 565 4,929 None 30
General Long Term Care .
Specialized Long Term Care
Long Term Acute Care
Other ((identify)
TOTALS: 462 18,880 108,213 None 462
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CERTIFICATION

The Application must be signed by the authorized representatives of the applicant entity. Authorized
representatives are:

o in the case of a corporation, any two of its officers or members of its Board of Directors;

o in the case of a limited liability company, any two of its managers or members {or the sole
manager or member when two or more managers or members do not exist);

o inthe case of a partnership, two of its general partners (or the sole general partner, when two or
more general partners do not exist);

o inthe case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries (or the sole beneficiary when two or more
beneficiaries do not exist); and

o inthe case of a sole proprietor, the individual that is the proprietor.

This Application is filed on the behalf of _The Board of Trustees of the University

of lllinois, a state body corporate and politic of the State of lllinois__*
in accordance with the requirements and procedures of the lllinois Health Facilities Planning Act.
The undersigned certifies that he or she has the authority to execute and file this Application on
behalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies that the data and information
provided herein, and appended hereto, are complete and correct to the best of his or her
knowledge and belief. The undersigned also certifies that the fee required for this application is
sent herewith or will be paid upon request.

SIGNATURE SIGNATURE

Avijit Ghosh 22epenr  m. WILLIAMS
PRINTED NAME PRINTED NAME

Vice President, CFO & Comptroller Dy BOMNED oF TRUSTEES S UNNEES Y
PRINTED TITLE PRINTED TITLE
Notarization: Nofarization:
Subscribed and sworn to before me Subscribed and sworn to before me
this _3rd_ day of __December, 2019 this day of 1 Mw

( Zd/w W/( /(,WE%M

ota /Signature of Nota
Y fLLc ooom #5lg vy /

Official Seal

Notary Public - State of lHinois

My Commission Expires Jan 7, 2020

Seal

CATHERINE ELLEN FORAN
Official Seal

- Notary Public — State of lllinais
*Inserfie EX7 ggal name of the applicant 4 My Commission Expires Oct 17, 2021
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SECTION lli. BACKGROUND, PURPOSE OF THE PROJECT, AND ALTERNATIVES -
INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS

This Section is applicable to all projects except those that are solely for discontinuation with no project

costs.

1110.110(a) — Background of the Applicant

READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following required information:

BACKGROUND OF APPLICANT

1.

2.

A listing of all health care facilities owned or operated by the applicant, including licensing, and certlfication if
applicable.

A listing of all health care faciiities currently owned and/or operated in lllinois, by any corporate officers or
directors, LLC members, pariners, or owners of at least 5% of the proposed health care facility.

For the following questions, please provide information for each applicant, including corporate officers or
directors, LLC members, partners and owners of at [east 5% of the proposed facility. A health care facility is
considered owned or operated by every person or enfity that owns, directly or indirectly, an ownership
interest.

a. A certified listing of any adverse action taken against any facility owned and/or operated by the
applicant, directly or indirectly, during the three years prior to the filing of the application.

b. A certified listing of each applicant, identifying those individuals that have been cited, arresied,
taken into custody, charged with, Indicted, convicted or tried for, or pled guilty to the commission of
any felony or misdemeanor or violation of the law, except for minor parking violations; or the
subject of any juvenile delinquency or youthful offender proceeding. Unless expunged, provide
details about the conviction and submit any police or court records regarding any matters
disclosed.

¢. A cerlified and detailed listing of each applicant or person charged with fraugulent conduct or any
act involving moral turpitude.

d. A certified listing of each applicant with one or more unsatisfied judgements against him or her.

e. A certified and detalled listing of each applicant who Is in default in the performance or discharge of
any duty or obligation imposed by a judgment, decree, order or directive of any court or
governmsantal agency.

Authorization permitting HFSRB and DPH access to any documents necessary to verify the information
submitted, including, but not limited to official records of DPH or other State agencies; the licensing or
cerfification records of other states, when applicable; and the records of nationally recognized accreditation
organizations. Fallure to provide such authorization shall constitute an abandonment or withdrawal
of the application without any further action by HFSRB.

ff, during a given calendar year, an applicant submits more than one application for permit, the
documentation provided with the prior applications may be utilized to fulfill the information requirements of
this criterion. in such instances, the appiicant shall attest that the information was previously provided, cite
the project number of the prior application, and certify that no changes have occurred regarding the
information that has been previously provided. The applicant is able to submit amendments to previously
submitted information, as needed, to update and/or clerify data,

FAP;%ND DQCUEQIENTANON-#_;S [TAC}

& ' - AT
II]_J,. IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL 'DEREFTERﬁTH;; LAST: 03

"PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM. EACH ITEM (1-4) MUST, BE iDENTIFIED INATTACHMENT:41. :
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Criterion 1110.110(b) & (d)
PURPOSE OF PROJECT

1. Document that the project will provide health services that improve the health care or well-being of the
market area population to be served.

2, Define the planning area or market area, or other relevant area, per the applicant’s definition.

3. Identify the existing problems or issues that need to be addressed as applicable and appropriate for the
project.

4. Cite the sources of the documentation.

5. Detall how the project will address or improve the previously referenced issues, as well as the population’s
health status and well-being.

6. Provide goals with quantified and measurable objectives, with specific timeframes that relate fo achisving
the stated goals as appropriate.

For projects involving modemization, describe the conditions being upgraded, if any. For facllity projects, include
statements of the age and condition of the project site, as well as regulatory citations, if any. For equipment being
replaced, include repair and maintenance records.

NOTE: information ragarding the "Purposa of the Project” will be Included in the'State Board Staff Report.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 12, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST
PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM. EACH (TEM (1-6) MUST BE IOENTIFIED IN ATTACHMENT 12. .

ALTERNATIVES
1) Identify ALL of the alternatives to the proposed project.

Alternative options raust include:
A Proposing a project of greater or lesser scope and cost;

B) Pursuing a joint venture or similar arrangement with one or more providers or
entities to meet all or a portion of the project’s intended purposes; developing
alternative settings to meet all or a portion of the project's intended purposes;

C) Utilizing other health care resources that are available to serve alt or a portion of
the population proposed to be served by the project; and

D) Provide the reasons why the chosen alternative was selected.

2) Documentation shall consist of a comparison of the project 1o alternative options. The
comparison shall address issues of total costs, patient access, quality and financlal benefits in
both the short-term (within one to three years after project completion) and fong-term. This may
vary by project or situation. FOR EVERY ALTERNATIVE IDENTIFIED, THE TOTAL PROJECT |
COST AND THE REASONS WHY THE ALTERNATIVE WAS REJECTED MUST BE
PROVIDED.

3) The applicant shall provide empirical evidence, including quantified oulcome data that verifies
improved quality of care, as available.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 43, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE I?_I%'r

PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM. '

il

//
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SECTION IV. PROJECT SCOPE, UTILIZATION, AND UNFINISHED/SHELL SPACE
Criterion 1110.120 - Project Scope, Utilization, and Unfinished/Shell Space

READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following information: .
SIZE OF PROJECT:

1. Document that the amount of physical space proposed for the proposed project is necessary and not
excessive. This must be a narrative and it shall include the basis used for determining the space and

the methodology appiled.

2. If the gross square footage exceeds the BGSF/DGSF standards in Appendix B, justify the discrepancy by
documenting one of the following:

a. Additional space is needed due to the scope of services provided, justified by clinical or operational
needs, as supported by published data or studies and certified by the facility’s Medical Director.

b. The existing faciiity's physical configuration has constrainte or impediments and requires an
architectural design that delineates the constraints or impediments.

c. The project involves the conversion of existing space that results in excess square footage.

d. Additional space is mandated by governmental or certification agency requirements that were not in
existence when Appendix B standards were adopted.

Provide a narrative for any discrepancies from the State Standard. A table must be provided in the
following format with Attachment 14.

- _ " SIZE OF PROJECT
DEPARTMENT/SERVICE | PROPOSED STATE T DIFFERENCE | MET
_ BGSF/DGSF | STANDARD STANDARD?
L | . N

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTAGHMENT 14, iN NUMERIC BEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

L

“PROJECT SERVICES UTILIZATION:

This criterion Is applicable only to projects or portions of projects that involve services, functions or equipment
for which HFSRB has established utilization standards or occupancy targets In 77 ll. Adm. Code 1100.

Document that in the second year of operation, the annual ulitization of the service or equipment shall meet or exceed the
utilization standards specified In 1110.Appendix B. A narrative of the rationale that supports the projections must be
provided.

| A table must be provided in the following format with Attachment 18.

[ ) " UTILIZATION
i, DEPT/ | HISTORICAL | PROJECTED | STATE MEET

SERVICE | UTILIZATION | UTILIZATION | STANDARD | STANDARD?

(PATIENT DAYS)

(TREATMENTS) | |

ETC. ' |

YEAR 1 -
YEAR 2 1

APPEND DOGUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 16. IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LABT PAGE OF THE

! APPLICATION FORM, :

/ 2-
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TUNFINISHED OR SHELL SPACE:
Provide the following information:
1. Total gross square footage (GSF) of the proposed shell space.

2. The anticipated use of the shell space, specifying the proposed GSF to be allocated to each
department, area or function.

3. Evidence that the shell space is being constructed due to.

| a. Requirements of governmental or certification agencies, or

‘ b. Experienced increases in the historical occupancy or utilization of those areas proposed
to occupy the shell space.

4, Provide:
a. Historical utilization for the area for the latest five-year period for which data is available;
and
b. Based upon the average annual percentage increase for that period, projections of future |
utilization of the area through the anticipated date when the shell space will be placed |
into operation.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION A8 ATTAGHMENT 16, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
Liﬁhu‘cmon FORM,

[ASSURANCES:

e g

' Submit the following:

1. Verification that the applicant will submit to HFSRB a CON application to develop and utilize the
shell space, regardless of the capital thresholds In effect at the time or the categories of service
involved.

2  The estimated date by which the subsequent CON application (to develop and utilize the subject |
shell space) will be submitted; and

3. The anticipated date when the shell space will be completed and placed into operation.

APPEND DOGUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 17, 1N NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM. ] : L

[



#2020-02

The following Sections DO NOT need to be addressed by the applicants or co-applicants responsible for
funding or guaranteeing the funding of the project if the applicant has a bond rating of A- or better from
Fitch's or Standard and Poor's rating agencles, or A3 or better from Moody's (the rating shall be affirmed
within the latest 18-month period prior to the submittal of the application):

s Section 1920.120 Availability of Funds — Review Criteria
» Section 1120.130 Flnancial Viability ~ Revlew Criteria
e Section 1120.140 Economic Feasibllity ~ Review Criteria, subsection (a)

VI. 1120.120 - AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS

not applicable

The applicant shall document that financial resources shall be available and be equal 1o or exceed the estimated total
project cost plus any related project costs by providing evidence of sufficient financial resources from the following
sources, as applicable [Indicate the dollar amount to be provided from the following sources}]:

i

| a) Cash and Securities — statements (e.g., audited financial statements, letters
from financial institutions, board resolutions} as to:

|

| 1) the amount of cash and securities available for the project,
including the identification of any security, its value and

‘ availability of such funds, and

|

2) interest to be earned on depreciation account funds or to be
earned on any asset from the date of applicant's submission
through project completion;

' b) Pledges - for anticipated pledges, a summary of the anticipated pledges
showing anticipated receipts and discounted value, estimated time table of
gross receipts and related fundraising expenses, and a discussion of past
fundraising experience.

c) Gifts and Bequests - verification of the dollar amount, identification of any

ppi = conditions of use, and the estimated time table of receipts;

| d) Debt - a statement of the estimated terms and conditions (including the debt
S— time period, variable or permanent interest rates over the debt time period, and
the anticipated repayment schedule) for any interim and for the permanent
financing proposed to fund the project, including:

1) For general obligation bonds, proof of passage of the required
referendum or evidence that the governmental unit has the
authority to issue the bonds and evidence of the dollar amount
of the Issue, including any discounting anticipated;

2) For revenue bonds, proof of the feasibility of securing the
specified amount and interest rate;

3) For mortgages, a letter from the prospective lender attesting to
the expectation of making the loan in the amount and time

. indicated, including the anticipated interest rate and any

- conditions assoclated with the mortgage, such as, but not

limited to, adjustable interest rates, balloon payments, etc.;

4) For any lease, a copy of the lease, including all the terms and
conditions, including any purchase options, any capital
improvements to the property and provision of capital
equipment,

5) For any option to iease, a copy of the option, including all
terms and conditions.

o
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e) Govemmental Appropriations - a copy of the appropriation Act or ordinance
it accompanied by a statement of funding availability from an official of the governmental
unit. |f funds are to be made availabie from subsequent fiscal years, a copy ofa
resolution or other action of the governmental unit attesting to this intent;

f) Grants - a lstter from the granting agency as to the availability of funds in terms
e of the amount and time of receipt;

a) All Other Funds and Sources - verification of the amount and type of any other
S funds that will be used for the project.

TOTAL FUNDS AVAILABLE

vl
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SECTION VII. 1120.130 - FINANCIAL VIABILITY

All the applicants and co-applicants shall be identified, specifying their roles in the project funding or
guaranteeing the funding (sole responsibility or shared) and percentage of participation in that funding.

Financial Viabllity Walver

The applicant is not required to submit financial viability ratios if:

1. “A" Bond rating or better

2. All of the projects capital expenditures are completely funded through internal sources

3. The applicant's current debt financing or projected debt financing is insured or anticipated to be
insured by MBIA (Municipal Bond Insurance Association Inc.) or equivalent

4. The applicant provides a third party surety bond or performance bond letter of credit from an A
rated guarantor.

information to be provided
4, 1N NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE

See Section 1120.130 Financial Waiver for
APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ;
APPLICATION FORM.

not applicable

The appiicant or co-applicant that is responsibie for funding or guaranteeing funding of the project shall
provide viability ratios for the latest three years for which audited financial statements are available
and for the first full fiscal year at target utilization, but no more than two years following project
completion. When the applicant's facility does not have facility specific financlal statements and the
facility is a member of a health care system that has combined or consolidated financial statements, the
system's viability ratios shall be provided. If the heaith care system includes one or more hospitals, the
system's viability ratios shall be evaluated for conformance with the applicable hospital standards.

Historical ; : : Projected )
_ 3 Years. -
éﬁthr'ﬂlstorlual-andlar'P.roj'ac'l'nd
Years: . R e e
I Current Ratio
Net Margin Percentage

Percent Debt to Total Capitalization

Projected Debt Service Coverage

Days Cash on Hand

Cushion Ratio

Provide the methodology and worksheets utilized in determining the ratios detailing the
calculation and applicable line item amounts from the financial statements. Compiete a
separate table for each co-applicant and provide worksheets for each.

Variance

Applicants not in compliance with any of the viability ratios shall document that another
organization, pubiic or private, shall assume the legal responsibility to meet the debt
obligations should the applicant default.

-APPEND DOGUMENTATION A5 ATIAGHMENY 36; IN NUMERICAR: ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE = ™
APPLICATION FORM. 3 | L ; e, :

A&
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SECTION Vil11.1120.140 - ECONOMIC FEASIBILITY

This section is applicable to all projects subject to Part 1120.

A. Reasonableness of Financing Arrangements

not applicable

The applicant shail document the reasonableness of financing arrangements by
submitting a notarized statement signed by an authorized representative that attests to
one of the following:

1) That the total estimated project costs and related costs will be funded in total with
cash and equivalents, including investment securities, unrestricted funds,
received pledge receipts and funded depreciation; or

2) That the total estimated project costs and related costs will be funded in total or
in part by borrowing because:

A) A portion or all of the cash and equivalents must be retained in the
balance sheet assat accounts in order to maintain a current ratio of at
least 2.0 times for hospitals and 1.5 times for all other facllities; or

B) Borrowing is less costly than the liquidation of existing investments, and
the existing investments being retained may be converted to cash or
used to retire debt within a 60-day period.

B. Conditions of Debt Financing

This criterion is applicable only to projects that involve debt financing. The applicant shall
document that the conditions of debt financing are reasonable by submitting a notarized
statemnent signed by an authorized representative that attests to the following, as
applicable:

1) That the selected form of debt financing for the project will be at the lowest net
cost available;

2) That the selected form of debt financing will not be at the lowest net cost
available, but is more advantageous due to such terms as prepayment privileges,
no required mortgage, access to additional indebtedness, term (years), financing
costs and other factors;

3) That the project involves (in total or in part) the leasing of equipment or facilities
and that the expenses incurred with leasing a facility or equipment are less costly
than constructing a new facility or purchasing new equipment.

C. Reasonableness of Project and Related Costs
Read the criterion and provide the following:
1. identify each department or area impacted by the proposed project and provide a cost

and square footage allocation for new construction and/or maodernization using the
following format (insert after this page).

/7
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COST AND GROSS SQUARE FEET BY DEPARTMENT OR SERVICE

A B c D E F G H
Department Total
(list below) Cost/Square Foot Gross Sq. Ft. Gross Sq. Ft. Const. $ Mod. § Cost
New Mod. New Circ.* | Mod. Cire.* (AxC) (B xE}) (G +H)
Contingency
TOTALS

*Inciude the percentage (%} of space for circulation

D. Projected Operating Costs

The applicant shall provide the projected direct annual operating costs (in current dollars per
equivalent patient day or unit of service) for the first full fiscal year at target utilization but no

more than two years following project completion. Direct cost means the fully allocated costs of
salaries, benefits and supplies for the service.

E. Total Effect of the Project on Capltal Costs

The applicant shall provide the total projected annual capital costs (in current dollars per
equivalent patient day) for the first full fiscal year at target utilization but no more than two years
following project compl_etion.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 34, N NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM. '

arn ———
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SECTION IX. SAFETY NET IMPACT STATEMENT

SAFETY NET IMPACT STATEMENT that describes all of the following must be submitted for ALL
SUBSTANTIVE PROJECTS AND PROJECTS TO DISCONTINUE STATE-OWNED HEALTH CARE FACILITIES
{20 1LCS 3960/5.4]:

not applicable

1. The project's material impact, if any, on essential safety net services in the community, to the extent
that it is feasible for an applicant to have such knowledge.

2. The project's impact on the ability of another provider or health care system to cross-subsidize safety
net services, if reasonably known to the applicant.

3. How the discontinuation of a facility or service might impact the remaining safety net providers in a
given community, if reasonably known by the applicant.

Safety Net Impact Statements shall also include all of the following:

1. For the 3 fiscal years prior to the application, a certification describing the amount of charity care
provided by the applicant. The amount calculated by hospital applicants shall be in accordance with the
reporting requirements for charity care reporting in the lllinois Community Benefits Act. Non-hospital
applicants shall report charity care, at cost, in accordance with an appropriate methodology specified by
the Board.

2. For the 3 fiscal years prior to the application, a certification of the amount of care provided to Medicaid
patients. Hospital and non-hospital applicants shall provide Medicaid information in @ manner consistent
with the information reported each year to the lllinois Department of Public Health regarding "Inpatients
and Outpatients Served by Payor Source” and "Inpatient and Qutpatient Net Revenue by Payor Source"
as required by the Board under Section 13 of this Act and published in the Annual Hospital Profile.

3. Any information the applicant believes is directly relevant to safety net services, including information
regarding teaching, research, and any other service.

A table in the following format must be provided as part of Attachment 38.

Safety Net Information psr PA 88-0031
CHARITY CARE
Charity (# of patients) Year Year Year
Inpatient
Outpatient
Total
Charity (cost In dollars)
inpatient
Qutpatient
Total
MEDICAID
Medicald (# of patients) Year Year Year
Inpatient
Qutpatient
Total :
Medicald (revenue)
Inpatient
Qutpatient
Total
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1. The project's material impact, if any, on essential safety net services in the community, to the extent ]
that it is feasible for an applicant to have such knowledge.

| 2. The project's impact on the ability of another provider or health care system to cross-subsidize safety
net services, if reasonably known to the applicant.

3. How the discontinuation of a facility or service might impact the remaining safety net providers in a
given community, if reasonably known by the applicant.

Safety Net Impact Statements shall also Include all of the following:

1, For the 3 fiscal years prior to the application, a certification describing the amount of charity care

| provided by the applicant. The amount calculated by hospital applicants shall be in accordance with the
reporting requirements for charity care reporting in the lifinois Community Benefits Act. Non-hospital
applicants shall report charity care, at cost, in accordance with an appropriate methodology specified by
the Board.

2. For the 3 fiscal years prior to the application, a certification of the amount of care provided to Medicaid
patients. Hospital and non-hospital applicants shall provide Medicaid information in a manner consistent
with the information reported each year to the lllinois Department of Public Health regarding “Inpatients
and Outpatients Served by Payor Source” and "inpatient and Qutpatient Net Revenue by Payor Source”
as required by the Board under Section 13 of this Act and published in the Annual Hospital Profile.

3. Any information the applicant believes is directly relevant to safety net services, including information
regarding teaching, research, and any other service.

| A table in the following format must be provided as part of Attachment 38.

T Safety Net Information per PA 86-0031
— T CHARITY CARE
Charity (# of patients) 2016 2017 2018
Inpatient 312 334 540
| Outpatient 7568 | 8660 10892
Total - | 7880 | 8984 11432
| Charity (cost In dollars)
Inpatient_ _$3,036,025 $4,425,434 $7,881,359
Outpatient |  $3.827.888 $4,558,194 $5,267,573
Total $7,763,013 $8,083,628 $13,148,932
- MEDICAID
‘Medicaid (# of patlents) J 2016 2017 2018
Im:tatient1 8,205 8,226 8,481
Outpatient 195,081 255,768 256,768
Total o 203.268 263,994 265,247
MedIcald (revenue) o
i __Inpatient $199,322,502 | $201,265,644 $246,358,141
E' } Outpatient $77,410,680 |  $99,147,541 $90,576,780
f | Total o 5276,733,172 | $300413,185 |  $336.934,921

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS AT 1N NUMERIC BEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE

L " i el L I A A ihGT L = iy -
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SECTION X. CHARITY CARE INFORMATION

Charity Care information MUST be furnished for ALL projects [1120.20(c)].

1. All applicants and co-applicants shall indicate the amount of charity care for the latest three
audited fiscal years, the cost of charity care and the ratio of that charity care cost to net patient
revenue.

2. If the applicant owns or operates one or more facilities, the reporting shall be for each individual

facility located in lllinois. if charity care costs are reporied on a consolidated basis, the applicant
shall provide documentation as to the cost of charity care; the ratio of that charity care to the net
patient revenue for the consolidated financial statement; the allocation of charity care costs; and
the ratio of charity care cost to net patient revenue for the facility under review.

3. If the applicant is not an existing facility, it shall submit the facility's projected patient mix by payer
source, anticipated charity care expense and projected ratio of charity care to net patient revenue
by the end of its second year of operation.

Charity care” means care provided by a health care facility for which the provider does not expect '
to recelve payment from the patlent or a third-party payer (20 ILCS 3980/3). Charity Care must be
| provided at cost.

| A table in the following format must be provided for all facilities as part of Attachment 38.

CRARITY CARE
_ 2018 2017 2018 |
Tiat Patiant Rivenus $694,466,813 | $742,452,981 | $765,803,803

| Amount of Charity Care (charges) | $25,136,603 $34.206,620 | $30,211,028

] Cost of Charity Care $7,763,813 i $8,003,628 . _l . $13,148,832
'_.:._.,_ S :__,'__.m......q.hri, :,.-_.....,;__..,_..;'._.'.. s I.-.-.._.._,‘._._ ...,....__I_.-__;nr-; ""“'""_"‘"."".- e R iy R g e - e ...:F.-."L Fyy AL .._,...\.,._.:
' APPEND DOEUMENTATION AB ATTACHMENT 38, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE.
ARPLICATION FORM. AT E m P A A i ®
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STATUS OF APPLICANT

By law, the applicant is exempt from having to obtain a Certificate of Good Standing.

ATTACHMENT 1

AL
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University of llinols Hospital & Clinlcs
1740 W Taylor Streat
Suite 1400, W/C 803

wUl Health @& R

' [ . Phone 312.096,3900
Hospital Administration B e

November 11, 2019

Health Facllities and Services Review Board
525 West Jefferson Street, 2nd Floor
Springfield, Winols 62761

To whom it May Concern:

! hereby certify that the site of the proposed ambulatory care bullding addressed in this Certificate of
Need application is owned by the Board of Trustees of the University of lllinols, a state body corporate
and politic, which is the appticant for the proposed project.

Sincerely,

David H. Loffing
Chief Operating Officer

Notarizetgpu:/ .)J Q-Qh'm ,)D Ilti"L} )3

JAY T ELENGICAL
; OFFICIAL SEAL
Notsry Public, Stete of liinols

My Commission Expires
QOctober 10, 2023

ATTACHMENT 2
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NOTE ON OPERATING ENTITY/LICENSEE

The Board of Trustees of the University of Illinois owns the University of Illinois Medical
Center at Chicago and several other healthcare providers across the state. These providers,
pursuant to 210 ILCS 85/3(A)(2), are not subject to the licensure requirements of the Illinois
Hospital Licensure Act. The Hospital was established under the University of Illinois Hospital

Act (110 ILCS 330).

ATTACHMENT 3
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University of lilinois Hospita! & Clinlcs
1740 W Taylor Street
Suite 1400, MIC 882

s Health &

' P . Phone 312.998,3900
Hospital Administration ey

November 11, 2019

Health Facilities and Services Revlew Board
525 West Jefferson Street, 2nd Floor
Springfield, linois 62761

To Whom it May Concern:

| hereby certify that the project proposed in this Certificate of Need application, that being the construction
of an ambulatory care building at the intersection of Taylor Street and Wood street in Chicago, complies
with the requirements of Executive Order #2006-5. A map confirming such, and provided by FEMA, is
attached.

Sincerely,

David H. Loffing W

Chief Operating Officer

Notarizeogm 2 @&M l”’}-]l‘\
Date

; JAY T ELENGICAL
«'R OFFICIAL SEAL
SHEa J) Notary Public, State of ilinole

3 L
SO0/ My Commission Expires
\\? ) October 10, 2023

ATTACHMENT 3
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FEMA Flood Map Service Center | Search By Address

¥ FEMA
(/1w fema, gov/y

Navigation
Search
Languages

14SC Home (/portals)

MS$C Search by Address
{/portal/search}

wMSC Search All Progucis
{/portal/advanceSearch)

v MSC Products and Touls

(/portaifresourcesproduetsandtonts

Hazue
{/poitaliresources/hazus)

LOMC Batch Files
tponalfresourcesiome)

Procuct Availability
{ipor Lalfproduct Availability)

MSC Freguently Asked
Questions (FAQs)
(porialfiesourcestiag)

PSC Email Subsciipiions
{/portalfsubscriptionBame)

Comact M5C Help
{fporialiresourcesicontact)
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Page 1 ot 2

FEMA Flood Map Service Center: Search By
Address

Enter an address, place, or coordinates: §

Search

1740 West Taylor Street Chicago, IL 60612

wheiher you are in a high risk zone or ot you may heed Jom.

ipswrance: rpgrami berause most homeowners insurance doesi't cover flood darmage. 1 you five in an area
vath low or moderate flood risk, you are S times inore llkey w experlence flood (1:an a tire i your bame over the
next 30 years For many, a Natlonal Flood Insurance Program?s fiood insurance policy co-dd cost less than 5400
nes pear. Lall your msutance agent today and pratect what yiu've bulll

2 damage.

earmn inone dbuut M ¥ -[niti o regse fiond
Search Results—Products for CHICAGO, CITY OF

Show ALL Products = {(https:/i

The flood map for the selacted area is nurmber 17031€0506), effective on 08/19/2008 €

DYNAMIC MAP MAP IMAGE Changes to this FIRM ©
Revisions {0}
Amendments {1}
T i Revalidations (1)
Tmdecrie 9 ?
= T =
You cori choose @ new flood mop o Mo the fol GO To NFHL Viewer » (http:

ve the Jocution pin by sefeching o differend kocation on th
1 i [he search field above. It moy take 0 misls of Mo
peak hours to generate o dynomi g, if you are o persor with & drigbility, are Liing, or R
vision, gnd need ossistance, plecse il o map specigisl

{nfipsHmsc femn.goviportalirerow cezitantiacl)

mnp below or by entering o tew iori!

e bk P B b f oy sy ol bneofin AITy .).m e bl 5 4 it T
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ILLINOIS

Illinois Department of

Natural Resou rces JB Pritzker, Governor
B L2581 One Natural Resources Way  Springfield, [llinois 627021271 Collecn Callahan, Director
ATURAL www.dnrillinois.gov Malling Address: 1 Old State Capite! Plaza, Springfield, 1L 62701

N
RESOURCES
FAX (217) 524-7525

Cook County

Chicago
New Construction of a 5-Story Outpatient Building, University of Illinois Medical Center at Chicago
SE Corner of Taylor St. and Woods St.
SHPO Log #007072519

September 13, 2019

Jacob Axel

Axel & Associates, Inc.
675 North Court, Suite 210
Palatine, IL 60067

Dear Mr. Axel:
This letter is to inform you that we have reviewed the information provided concerning the referenced project.

Our review of the records indicates that no historic, architectural or archaeological sites exist within the project
area.

Please retain this letter in your files as evidence of compliance with Section 4 of the Illinois State Agency
Historic Resources Preservation Act (20 ILCS 3420/1 et. seq.). This clearance remains in effect for two years
from date of issuance. It does not pertain to any discovery during construction, nor is it a clearance for
purposes of the Illinois Human Skeletal Remains Protection Act (20 ILCS 3440).

If you have any further questions, please call 217/782-4836.
Sincerely,

Zard<d, Q,,L

Robert F. Appleman
Deputy State Historic
Preservation Officer

ATTACIIMENT 6
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PROJECT COSTS and SOURCES OF FUNDS

Project Costs
Preplanning Costs

functional space analyses
alternatives analyses
feasibility analysis

other

Site Survey and Soil Investigation

Site Preparation
site clearing/earth moving
paving
fencing and handrails
site walls
landscaping
other

New Construction
see ATTACHMENT 36

Modernization
see ATTACHMENT 36

Construction & Modernization Contingency
see ATTACHMENT 36

Architectural & Engineering Fees
preliminary renderings
design
regulatory agency interaction
project monitoring
reimburseables
other

Consulting and Other Fees
legal
zoning/regulatory approvals
CON-related
project management
insurance
interior design
other

$959,725

$14,000

$682,725

$9,126,995

$969,800

$2,915,880

$1,054,515

$1,945,560

#2020-02

ATTACHMENT 7
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Movable and Other Equipment $330,000
public waiting
IT
other
TOTAL $18,000,000

Sources of Funds
Cash and Securities $18,000,000

ATTACHMENT 7
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BACKGROUND OF APPLICANT

This Certificate of Need application’s sole applicant is the Board of Trustees of the
University of Illinois, body politic of the State of Illinois. The University of Illinois Medical
Center at Chicago (“UIMCC) is the sole health care facility operated by the applicant, per the
HFSRB’s definition of a health care facility. As discussed in ATTACHMENT 3, UIMCC does

not hold an Ilinois Department of Health-issued license.

The University of Illinois Board of Trustees is constituted with the following individuals:

Ramon Cepeda
Kareem Dale

Donald J. Edwards
Ricardo Estrada
Patricia Brown Holmes
Naomi D. Jakobson
Stuart C. King

Edward L. McMillan
Jill B. Smart
Trayshawn M. W. Mitchell
Susan E. Panek
Rosalie Dawoud
Govenor J. B. Pritzker

ATTACHMENT 11
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University of Illinois Hospital & Clinlcs
1740 W Taylor Street
Suite 1400, MIC 693

k| Health @
- e a L Chicago, IL 606124325

i i i Phone 312.896.3800
Hospital Administration For 312.50070i0

November 11, 2019

Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 West Jefferson Street, 2nd Floor
Springfield, lllinois 62761

To Whom [t May Concern:

I hereby acknowledge that no adverse action has been taken against the University of lllinois Medical
Center at Chicago, directly or indirectly, within three (3) years prior to the filing of this Application. For
the purposes of this letter, the term “adverse action” has the meaning given to it in the lllinois
Administrative Code, Title 77, Section 1130.

| hereby authorize HFSRB and IDPH to access any documents which it finds necessary to verify any
information submitted, including, but not limited to: official records of IDPH or other State agencies and
the records of nationally recognized accreditation organizations.

Sincerely,

David H. Loffing
Chief Operating Officer

Notarized:s;)- vy P w\m.} “/l Z} 1o}
Déte

‘k JAY T ELENGICAL

’ OFFICIAL SEAL
Hotary Public, State of lllinole

\\y/ My Commission Explres

QOctober 10, 2023

ATTACHMENT 11
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J  The Joint Commission

January 25, 2017
Avijit Ghosh, PhD Joint Commission 1D #: 7282
Chief Executive Officer Program: Hospitat Accreditation
Accreditation Activity: 60-day Evidence of
The Board of Trustees of the University of Standards Compliance
Tllinois Accreditation Activity Completed: 01/24/2017

1740 W Taylor Street, Ste 1400
Chicago, IL 60612

Dear Dr. Ghosh:

The Joint Commission is pleased to grant your organization an accreditation decision of Accredited for all
services surveyed under the applicable manual(s) noted below:

. Co ehe A i ual for Hospi

This accreditation cycle is effective beginning November 19, 2016 and is customarily valid for up to 36 months.
Please note, The Joint Commission reserves the right to shorten or lengthen the duration of the cycle.

Should you wish to promote your accreditation decision, please view the information listed under the
'Publicity Kit' link located on your secure extranet site, The Joint Commission Connect.

The Joint Commission will update your accreditation decision on Quality Check®.

Congratulations on your achievement.

Sincerely,

Wk Bt

Mark G.Pelletier, RN, MS
Chief Operating Gfficer

Division of Accreditation and Certification Operations

ATTACHMENT 11



#2020-02

PURPOSE OF PROJECT

The purpose of the proposed project is consistent with the goals set forth at the initiation

of the project’s planning process, which included:

e improve circulation and access, exterior and interior
o clarify and improve patient and visitor wayfinding
e improve security and access control

» improve the hospital’s image/visibility/brand

e improve interior ambiance

» incorporate UIC sustainability goals and reduce maintenance costs.

ATTACHMENT 12

3¢
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ALTERNATIVES

Due to the limited nature of the proposed project, this section is not applicable.

ATTACHMENT 13
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SIZE OF PROJECT

This section is not applicable to the proposed project, as the proposed project has no

components having HFSRB-adopted square footage standards.

ATTACHMENT 14

27
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PROJECT ERVICES UTILIZATION

This section is not applicable to the proposed project, as the proposed project has no

components having HFSRB-adopted utilization standards.

ATTACHMENT 135
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p
Moobpy’s
INVESTORS SERVICE
Rating Action: Moody's assigns A1 to University of lllinois' (IL) Academic

Facilities Lease Revenue Bonds Provident Group - UIUC Properties LLC;
outlook stable

18 Apr 2019

New York, April 18, 2019 -- Moody's Investors Service has assigned an A1 to University of lllinois' proposed
$74 million Academic Facillties Lease Revenue Bonds (Provident Group - UIUC Properties LLC - University of
llinois at Urbana-Champaign Project) Series 2019A (2051 maturity) and $4 million Academic Facilities Lease
Revenue Bonds (Provident Group - UIUC Properties LLC - University of lllinois at Urbana-Champaign Project)
Taxable Series 2019B (2051 maturity). The bonds will be issued by Provident Group - UIUC Properties LLC
(PR-UIUC) through the lllincis Finance Authority, with debt service pald from lease payments from University of
linois (U of ) from all legally available non-appropriated funds. At the same time, we have affirmed the A1
ratings on the $1.1 billion of Auxiliary Facilities System Revenue Bonds (AFS) and the $147 million of
Certificates of Participation (COPs), the A2 on $23 million of South Campus Development Bonds and the Baa‘
on the $105 million of Health Services Facllities System (HSFS) bonds. The outlook is stable for all ratings.

RATINGS RATIONALE

The A1 rating for the Academic Facilitles Leass Revenue Bonds reflects the legal security of lease payments
from University of illinois as lessee for the two facliities to be financed from bond proceeds and located on U of
I's Urbana-Champaign campus. Both facilities are critical academic facilities - a Campus Instructional Facility
for the School of Engineering and a new Feed Technology Center for its Coliege of Agriculture, Consumer and
Environmental Sciences. The facilities will be leased to the university under triple-net lease agraements, with
lease payments to be paid from all legally available non-appropriated funds. Under the lease U of | is
responsible for all operating expenses, capital expenses, maintenance, upkeep, insurance and other related
costs. The university is required to make the base rent payments directly to the trustee to fund the debt service.
The base rent is not subject to diminution, abatement, suspension or other reductions. U of | can purchase the
facilities at any time by prepaying the base rent sufficient to redeem alt outstanding principal and related costs,
or can require PG-UIUC to call the bonds for redemptlon when available for redemption.

The A1 rating for the AFS bonds, COPs and lease revenue bonds incorporates U of I's excellent liquidity and
significant market strength resulting In favorable trends In student generated revenues pledged to
bondholders. The rating also incorporates University of Ilinois' notable scale with nearly $7 billion of operating
revenue, relatively strong overall wealth levels with $5.4 billion of total cash and investments for fiscal 2018
and a modest debt burden with manageable debt plans. The key challenge is U of I's material operating
reliance on the State of lllinois (Baa3 stabie), including state on-behalf payments for employee benefits. This
has resulted in volatile operations from state budget problems, including only partial annual appropriations. In
particular, the fiscal 2020 budget is not yet finalized, with the ultimate outcome for the amount of direct
operating appropriations still to be determined. The potential shifting over time of responsibility for post-
retirement benefit costs to the university is also factored into the credit profile.

U of I's continued strong student and research market positions are reflected in record enroliment of over
85,000 students for fall 2018 and research expenditures now about $1 billion. These, with good gift revenues
from its campaign and a generally stable patient care enterprise, is expected to drive stable to stronger
operations and strong debt service coverage for fiscal 2019,

The A2 on the South Campus bonds is primarily supported by a subordinate lien on certain tuition and fee and
incorporates the risk associated with receipt of declining tax increment revenues from the City of Chicago {Ba1
stable) related to the tax increment financing (TIF) district created for the project area.

The Baa1-rated HSFS bonds incorporates potential future pressures on pledged revenues from Medicaid
reimbursement and delayed cash collections from insurers or from the state.

RATING OUTLOOK

The stable outlook reflects expectations that University of lincis will maintain very good liquidity and strong

—

ATTACHMENT 34
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UNIVERSITY OF ILLINOIS
HEALTH SERVICES FACILITIES SYSTEM

Annual Financial Report
June 30, 2018

(With Independent Auditors’ Report Thereon)

Chitontarsondne;| LLP

ATTACHMENT 33
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THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

EX OFFICIO MEMBER

The Govemor of Illinois
Honorable Bruce Rawner... ... ... Springficld

MEMBERS

Ramén Cepeda .o, ... Darien
Donald J. Edwards ......... ....Chncago
Patrick J. Fitzgerald.... ..Chicago
Stuart C. King i i it s .. Champaign
Timothy N. Kortz.. ... .. Roscoe
Edward L. McMillan...... fizsi ... Greenville
James D. Montgomery, St. oo ...Chicago
Sanford E. Perl ... S Glencoe
TRl B AT it L ki buami amvva b O e w5 A ani s ma Sy s n AV AR SRS S LT Downcrs Grove

STUDENT TRUSTEES
TrayShaWh MItCREI .ovoivcrrrerre emresssrsosis st tsscssssssssimsssssmassseessmsesisssassmens s s senens LNEVETSItY 0f Hlinois at Urbana — Champaign
Karina Reyes .. ..o i ... University of Illinois at Chicago
Edwin Robles ..o ... University of Itinois at Sprngfield
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Oftice of the Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Comiptroller
349 Henry Administration Building, 506 South Wreght Street - Urbana, Illinois 61801

December 19, 2018

Holders of University of Illinois
Health Services Facilities System Revenue Bonds
and The Board of Trustees of the University of Illinois:

I am pleased to transmit the Annual Financial Report of the University of Illinois Health Services
Facilities System for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. This report supplements the Annual Financial
Report of the University of Illinois.

The Health Services Facilities System continues to have to a strong financial position thanks to an
increase in patient revenue realization and appropriation support from the State of Illinois. Through
effective and efficient utilization of resources, prudent decision-making and a commitment to excellence
by medical professionals, administrators and staff, the Health Services Facilities System continued to
advance its mission in fiscal year 2018.

The 2018 financial statements and accompanying notes appearing on pages 5 through 34 have been
audited by CliftonLarsonAllen LLP, Independent Certified Public Accountants, as special assistants to
the Auditor General of the State of Illinois, whose report on the financial statements appears on pages 2
through 4.

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP will also prepare a report for the year ended June 30, 2018, containing special
data requested by the Auditor General and another report covering their audit of the compliance of the
University with applicable state and federal laws and regulations for the year ended June 30, 2018.
These reports, which include some data related to the Health Services Facilities System, are not
contained herein and are primarily for the use of the Auditor General and state and federal agencies.

Very truly yours,

SIGNED ORIGINAL ON FILE

Avijit Ghosh,
Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Comptrolier

Utbana » (217) 333-1560 » Fax (217) 244-8108

Chicago » 1737 West Polk Street = Chicago, Hlinois 64612 » (312) 996- 8800
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CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
CLAconnect.com

CliftonLarsonAllen

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Honorahle Frank J. Mautino
Auditor General, State of lllinois
and Board of Trustees
University of lllinois

Report on the Financial Statements

As Special Assistant Auditors for the Auditor General, we have audited the accompanying financial
statements of the business-type activities of the University of lllinois Health Services Facilities System (the
System), a segment of the University of lllinois, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the System'’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.
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Honorable Frank J. Mautino
Auditor General, State of lllinois
and Board of Trustees
University of lliinois

Opinion

In our apinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the business-type activities for the System as of June 30, 2018, and the changes in
financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 1(a), the financial statements of the System are intended to present the financial
position, the changes in financial position, and cash flows of only that portion of the business-type activities
of University of lllinois that is attributable to the transactions of the System. They do not purport to, and do
not, present fairfly the financial position of University of illincis as of June 30, 2018, and its changes in
financial position and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited the Systems’ 2017 financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified
audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated January 30, 2018. |n our opinion,
the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017,
is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been

derived,

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Schedule of
University of lllinois Health Services Facilities System Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
on page 33 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not
a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board,
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements
in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we
obtained during our audits of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Management has omitted the Management's Discussion and Analysis that accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America required to be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by
the Governmenta! Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of the financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. Our opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing information.
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Honorable Frank J. Mautino
Auditor General, State of lilinois
and Board of Trustees
University of lllinois

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report under separate cover
dated December 19, 2018, on our consideration of the System's internal control over financial reporting
and on our tests of its compiiance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to solely describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on the effectiveness of the System'’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the System's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

SIGNED ORIGINAL ON FILE

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Peoria, lllinois
December 19, 2018
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UNIVERSITY OF ILLINOIS
HEALTH SERVICES FACILITIES SYSTEM

Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2018
(with summarized comparative information for June 30, 2017)

Current assets:

Other receivables
Inventories

Noncurrent assets:

Restricted investments

Deferred outflow of resources

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll
Accrued interest payable

Unearned revenues

Noncurrent liabilities:

Net investment in capital assets
Restricted:

Unrestricted

Assets and Deferred Outflow of Resources 2018 2017
Claim on cash and on pooled investments $ 226,745,816 183,050,780
Restricted claim on cash and on pooled investments 1,102,400 1,115,900
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 38,045 25,760
Accrued investment income 801,777 631,917
Patient accounts receivable, net 162,101,942 154,960,372

Receivable from the State of Illinois 39,588,800
10,233,948 9,135,817
6,247,287 6,172,549
Prepaid expenses, deposits, and other assets 2,450,673 1,503,907
Total current assets 449,310,688 356,597,002
Restricted claim on cash and on pooled investments 21,758,266 12,913,356
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 38,268 2,540,005
5,504,215 17,317,772
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 203,372,257 201,619,437
Total noncurrent assets 230,673,006 234,390,570
3,291,265 4,666,875
Total assets and deferred outflow of resources $ 683,274,959 595,654,447
Liabilities and Net Position
$ 72268217 49,208,878
14,085,435 13,818,349
1,140,445 1,141,660
Estimated third-party settlements 68,921,214 61,520,168
97,816
Current maturities of long-term debt 3,837,115 4,649,688
Current portion of accrued compensated absences 2,137,664 2,173,300
Total current liabilities 162,390,090 132,609,859
Long-term debt, net of current maturities 105,612,770 109,449,884
Accrued compensated absences, net of current portion 24,366,519 22,830,419
Derivative instrument — swap liability 1,868,697 3,071,874
Total noncurrent liabilities 131,847,986 135,352,177
Total liabilities 294.238,076 267,962,036
101,825,277 100,076,640
Expendable for capital projects 19,558,832 17,046,838
Expendable for debt service 15,641 13,091
267,637,133 210,555,792
Total net position 389,036,883 327692411
Total liabilities and net position 8§ 683,274,959 595,654,447
See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Year ended June 30, 2018

(with summarized comparative information for year ended June 30, 2017)

Operating revenues.
Net patient service revenues
Revenues recognized on behalf of the System
Other revenues

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Salaries and wages
Fringe benefits
Supplies and general expenses
Administrative services
Depreciation and amortization

Total operating expenses
Operating loss

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
On-behalf for fringe benefits
State appropriations
Transfer of State appropriations to the University of Illinois
Hospital Services Fund
Net (decrease) increase in fair value of investments
Interest on capital asset related debt
Investment income (net of related expenses)
Loss on disposal of capital assets
Other nonoperating revenues, net

Net nonoperating revenues
Increase in net position
Net position, beginning of year
Net position, end of year

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

$

$

2018 2017
721,081,781 672,724,981
28,018,039 29,197,700
42,198,886 37,540,591
791,298,706 739,463,272
332,524,265 315,690,489
323,092,114 298,438,110
393,141,666 369,687,746
13,056,116 13,859,481
21,498,679 20,845,815
1,083,312,840 1,018,521,641
(292,014,134)  (279,058,369)
316,872,252 292,263,906
57,595,400 20,177,300
(20,000,000) (20,177,300)
(656,300) 1,000,999
(4,365,815) (4,054,283)
3,535,130 2,766,745
(59,105) (127,993)
437,544 60,472
353,358,606 291,909,846
61,344,472 12,851,477
327,692,411 314,840,934
389,036,883 $ 327,692,411
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HEALTH SERVICES FACILITIES SYSTEM

Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended June 30, 2018

(with summarized comparative information for year ended June 30, 2017)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Patient services
Payments to suppliers
Payments for administrative services
Payments to employees
Payments for benefits
Other receipts

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
State appropriations
Other receipts

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Purchases of capital assets
Principal paid on capital debt and leases
Interest paid on capital debt and leases

Net cash used in capital and related
financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest on investments

Pooled cash allocated (to) from University related to unrealized

(losses) gains
Purchases of investments
Sales of investments

Net cash provided by investing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

$

$

2018 2017
721341257 $ 692,151,157
(375,326,575) (349,726,756)
(13,056,116) (13,859,481)
(316,608,178) (298,235,420)
(4,719,398) (4,498,704)
41,002,939 43,207,867
52,633,929 69,038,663
18,006,600
71,636 59,459
18,078,236 59,459
(25,523,432) (32,362,219)
(4,285,066) (5,341,043)
(5,388,700) (5,500,640)
(35,197,198) (43,203,902)
3,365,269 2,614,528
(671,509) 1,035,109
(2,972,270) (26,397,491)
14,800,537 38,208,655
14,522,027 15,460,801
50,036,994 41,355,021
199,645,801 158,290,780
249,682,795 $ 199,645,801
ATTACHMENT 33
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UNIVERSITY OF ILLINOIS
HEALTH SERVICES FACILITIES SYSTEM

Statement of Cash Flows
Year ended June 30, 2018
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(with summarized comparative information for year ended June 30, 2017)

2018

2017

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash provided by
operating activities:

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash provided by
operating activities:

(292,014,134) §  (279,058,369)

Depreciation and amortization expense 21,498,679 20,845,815
Provision for uncollectible accounts 26,308,488 40,593,579
On-behalf for fringe benefits 316,872,252 292,263,906
Changes in assets and liabilities:

Patient receivables (33,450,058) (25,722,893)

Other receivables (1,098,131) 5,704,432
Inventories (74,738) (117,708)

Prepaid expenses, deposits, and other assets (946,766) (329,319)

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 6,734,643 8,665,386

Estimated third-party settlements 7,401,046 4,555,490

Accrued compensated absences 1,500,464 1,675,500
Unearned revenues (97.,816) (37,156)

Net cash provided by operating activitics h 52,633,929 $ 69,038,663

Noncash investing, capital, and financing activities:
On-behalf for fringe benefits $ 316872252 § 292,263,906
State appropriation 20,000,000 20,177,300
Transfers to University of Illinois Hospital Services Fund (20,000,000) (20,177,300)
Other capital asset adjustments 21,620 49,875
Net interest capitalized 1,173,769 1,577,172
(Decrease) increase of capital assets obligations in accounts payable (3,408,217) 3,647,612
Loss on disposal of capital assets $ (59,105) $ (127,993)
See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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UNIVERSITY OF ILLINOIS
HEALTH SERVICES FACILITIES SYSTEM

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2018

Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization

The University of Illinois Health Services Facilities System (System) comprises the University of 1llinois
Hospital (Hospital) and associated clinical facilities providing patient care at, but not limited to, the
University of Tilinois at Chicago Medical Center. The System is a tertiary care facility located in Chicago,
Illinois offering a full range of clinical services. The System does not include the operations of the
University of Illinois’ Medical Service Plans or Colleges of Medicine. Management of the System is the
responsibility of the University of Illinois (University).

The System was established by a Bond Resolution (Resolution) of the Board of Trustees (Board) of the
University of Illinois adopted on January 22, 1997. These financial statements have been prepared to satisfy
the requirements of the 19978, 2008 and 2013 bond indentures. The financial balances and activities of the
System are also included in the University’s financial statements. The financial statements of the System
are prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles as prescribed by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The System is not a separate legal entity and has not
presented management’s discussion and analysis.

The financial statements include certain prior year comparative information that has been derived from the
System’s 2017 financial statements. Such information does not include all of the information required to
constitute a presentation in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Accordingly,
such information should be read in conjunction with the System’s financial statements for the year ended

June 30, 2017.

Significant Accounting Policies
(@)  Financial Statement Presentation and Basis of Accounting

The System prepared its financial statements as a Business Type Activity, as defined by GASB
Statement No. 35, Basic Financial Statements — and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for
Public Colleges and Universilies, using the ecorlomic resources measurement focus and the accrual
basis of accounting. Business Type Activities are those financed in whole or in part by fees charged
to external parties for goods and services.

Under the accrual basis, revenues are recorded when earned, and expenses are recorded when a
liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Advances are classified as
unearned revenues.

(b) Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Statement of Cash Flows details the change in the cash and cash equivalents balance for the fiscal
year. Cash and all liquid investments with original maturities of ninety days or less are defined as
cash and cash equivalents.

(¢c) Investments

Investments are reported at fair value in accordance with guidelines defined by GASB Statement
No. 72. Fair value is determined for the System’s investments based upon a framework described in
Note 2(f). Bank deposits and money market funds are recorded at cost.

ATTACHMENT 33
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Changes in fair value during the reporting period are reported as a net increase (decrease) in the fair
value of investments. Net investment income includes interest, dividends, and realized gains

and losses.

Inventories

Inventories of pharmaceutical and other supplies are stated at the lower of cost, determined using the
first-in, first-out method, or market.

Capital Assets

Capital assets are recorded at cost or, if donated, at acquisition value at the date of a gift. Depreciation
of capital assets is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives (see below) of the
respective assets. The System’s policy requires the capitalization of land and collection purchases
regardless of cost, equipment over $5,000, software, easements, buildings and improvements over
$100,000 and infrastructure over $1,000,000. The System does not capitalize collections, such as
works of art or historical treasures, which are held for public exhibition, education or research in
furtherance of public service rather than capital gain, unless they were previously capitalized as of
June 30, 1999. Proceeds from the sale, exchange or other disposal of any item belonging to a
collection must be applied to the acquisition of additional items for the same collection.

Estimated useful lives for capital assets are as follows:

Useful life Useful life
(in years) (in years)
Buildings: Improvements other than buildings:
Shell 50 Site improvements 20
Service systems 25 Infrastructure 25
Fixed equipment 15
Remodeling 25
Intangibles: Moveable equipment:
Software 5-10 Equipment 3-20

Deferred Outflow of Resources

Under hedge accounting, the University has determined that the interest rate swap agreement on the
System’s bonds payable, as a hedging derivative instrument, is an effective hedge. Accordingly,
changes in the fair value of the interest rate swap, since being associated with the related outstanding
bonds, is reported as a deferred outflow of resources on the accompanying Statement of Net Position.
Additionally, an interest rate swap reassigned to new debt, after a refunding of debt that the swap
previously hedged, normally has an other than zero fair value upon the reassociation. For a swap with
a fair value of other than zero upon reassociation with a hedgeable item, the fair value is amortized as
an adjustment to interest expense in a systematic manner.

Losses on refundings for the System’s bonds are reported as deferred outflow of resources on the
accompanying Statement of Net Position. The losses on refundings are amortized over the life of the
debt using the straight-line method.
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Deferred Outflow of Resources

Beginning Change in Ending
balance Additions Deductions  fair value balance
Interest rate swap agreement
that hedges Series 2008
bonds § 2,347,705 78,300 (1,203,177) § 1,222,328
Unamortized deferred loss
on refunding 2,319,170 (250,733) 2,068,437
Total deferred outflow of
resources $ 4,666,875 78.300 (250,733) (1,203,177) $__ 3,291,265
Compensated Absences

Accrued compensated absences for System personnel are charged as an operating expense, using the
vested method, based on earned but unused vacation and sick leave days including the System’s share
of Social Security and Medicare taxes. The estimated outstanding liability at June 30, 2018 was

$26,504,183.

Premiums

Premiums for the System’s bonds are reported within long-term debt and amortized over the life of
the debt issue using the straight-line method.

Net Position

The System’s resources are classified into net position categories and reported in the Statement of Net
Position. These categories are defined as (a) Net investment in capital assets — capital assets net of
accumulated depreciation and related outstanding debt balances attributable to the acquisition,
construction, or improvement of those assets, (b) Restricted — net position subject to externally
imposed restrictions that can be fulfilled by actions of the System pursuant to those stipulations or
that expire by the passage of time, and (c) Unrestricted — net position not subject to externally
imposed stipulations but may be designated for specific purposes by action of management or the
Board. The System first applies resources included in restricted net position when an expense or
outlay is incurred for purposes for which resources in both restricted and unrestricted net positions are

available.

Classification of Revenues

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position classifies the System’s fiscal year
activity as operating and nonoperating. Operating revenues generally result from exchange
transactions such as payments received for providing goods and services.

Certain revenue sources that the System relies on for operations including on-behalf payments for
fringe benefits and investment income are defined by GASB Statement No. 35 as nonoperating. In
addition, transactions related to capital and financing activities are components of net nonoperating
revenues.

In fiscal year 2018, $20,000,000 was appropriated by the State to be transferred to the University of
Tllinois Hospital Services Fund, which is a special fund established in the State of Illinois Treasury
pursuant to the State Finance Act, 30 ILCS 105/6z-30. This fund is owned and operated by the
Hlinois Department of Healthcare and Family Services. It is not part of or a related organization of the
University.
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Other operating revenues of the System include capitation payments from Health Maintenance
Organizations (HMOs) to provide medical setvices to subscribers, revenues from laboratory services
provided to external organizations, cafeteria/gift shop sales and other sources.

Patient Services Revenue

The System has agreements with third-party payors that provide for payments to the System at
amounts different from its established rates. Payment arrangements include prospectively determined
rates, discounted charges and per diem payments. Patient service revenue is reported at the estimated
net realizable amounts from patients, third-party payors and others for services rendered, including
estimated adjustments under reimbursement agreements with third-party payors, some of which are
subject to audit by administrating agencies. These adjustments arc accrued on an estimated basis and
are adjusted in future periods.

The System provides allowances for uncollectible accounts receivable based upon management’s best
estimate of uncollectible accounts, considering type, age, collection history, and any other factors as
considered appropriate.

Charity Care

The policy of the System is to treat patients in immediate need of medical services without regard to
their ability to pay for such services. The System provides care without charge or at amounts less than
its established rates to patients who meet the criteria of its charity care policy. This policy defines
charity care and provides guidelines for assessing a patient’s ability to pay. Eligibility is based on
patient qualification, financial resources and service criteria. Because the System does not pursue
collection of amounts determined to be charity care, they are not reported as revenue.

The System maintains records to identify and monitor the level of charity care provided. These
records include the amount of estimated costs for services rendered and supplies furnished under its
charity care policy. The estimated cost of charity care using the System’s cost-to-charge ratio was
$18,397,000 for fiscal year 2018, an increase of 37% from the prior year, primarily due to accelerated
charity reviews being performed, an increase in the number of patients qualifying for charity care and
patients who qualified under the presumptive requirement of the System’s financial assistance policy
who were either declined Medicaid coverage or were previously covered by Medicaid but are now
uninsured. The ratio of costs to charges is calculated based on the System’s total operating expenses.
Unreimbursed costs of providing care to Medicare and Medicaid patients are not included as charity
care.

Classification of Expenses

The majority of the System’s expenses are exchange transactions which GASB defines as operating
expenses for financial statement presentation. Nonoperating expenses include transfers of State
appropriations and capital financing costs.

On-Behalf for Fringe Benefits

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 24, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Granis
and Other Financial Assistance, the System reported expenses incurred by the State of Iilinois (State)
on behalf of the System related to State group insurance and retirement programs, including
postemployment benefits, for System employees and its retirees of $316,872,252 for the year ended
June 30, 2018.

On-behalf for fringe benefits are classified as nonoperating revenues and the corresponding expenses
are reported in fringe benefits of the System as operating expenses.

ATTACHMENT 33
(Continucd)

12
Z
Civd



(o)

(p)

(@

#2020-02

Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions and pension expense, information about the plan net position
of the State Universities Retirement System (SURS) and additions to/deductions from SURS’ plan
net position has been determined on the same basis as they are reported by SURS. For this purpose,
benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable
in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

For the purposes of financial reporting, the State and participating employers are considered to be
under a special funding situation. A special funding situation is defined as a circumstance in which a
non-employer entity is legally responsible for making contributions directly to a pension plan that is
used to provide pensions to the employees of another entity or entities and either (1) the amount of
the contributions for which the non-employer entity is legally responsible is not dependent upon one
or more events unrelated to pensions or (2) the non-employer is the only entity with a legal obligation
to make contributions directly to a pension plan. The State is considered a non-employer contributing
entity. Participating employers are considered employer contributing entities.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

New Accounting Pronouncements

The System adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, which was effective for periods beginning after
June 15, 2017. This Statement establishes standards for recognizing and measuring liabilities,
deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and expense/expenditures. For defined
benefit other postemployment benefits (OPEB), this Statement identifies the methods and
assumptions that are required to be used to project benefit payments, discount projected benefit
payments to their actuarial present value, and attribute that present value to periods of employee
service. Note disclosure and required supplementary information requirements about defined benefit
OPEB also are addressed. Implementation of this pronouncement required a change to the System’s
footnote 8(b) disclosures and an increase in on-behalf for fringe benefits.

The System adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 81, Irrevocable Split-Interest
Agreements, which was effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2016. The objective of
this Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting for irrevocable split-interest
agreements by providing recognition and measurement guidance for situations in which a government
is a beneficiary of the agreement. This Statement requires that a government that receives resources
pursuant to an irrevocable split-interest agreement recognize assets, liabilities, and deferred inflows of
resources at the inception of the agreement. Implementation of this pronouncement did not impact the
System’s financial statements.
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The System adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 85, Omnibus 2017, which was effective
for periods beginning after June 15, 2017. The objective of this Statement is to address practice issues
that have been identified during implementation and application of certain GASB Statements. This
Statement addresses a variety of topics including issues related to blending component units,
goodwill, fair value measurement and application, and postemployment benefits (pensions and
OPEB). Implementation of this pronouncement did not impact the System’s financial statements.

The System adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 86, Certain Debt Extinguishment Issues,
which was effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2017. The primary objective of this
Statement is to improve consistency in accounting and financial reporting for in-substance defeasance
of debt by providing guidance for transactions in which cash and other monetary assets acquired with
only existing resources — resources other than the proceeds of refunding debt — are placed in an
irrevocable trust for the sole purpose of extinguishing debt. This Statement also improves accounting
and financial reporting for prepaid insurance on debt that is extinguished and notes to financial
statements for debt that is defeased in substance. Tmplementation of this pronouncement did not
impact the System’s financial statements,

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments

The System has cash and certain investments that are pooled with other University funds for the purpose of
securing a greater return on investment and providing an equitable distribution of investment return. Income
is distributed based upon average quarterly balances invested in the investment pool.

Nearly all of the University’s investments are managed by extemal professional investment managers, who
have full discretion to manage their portfolios subject to investment policy and manager guidelines
established by the University, and in the case of mutual funds and other commingled vehicles, in
accordance with the applicable prospectus or limited partnership agreement,

The Board follows the State of Illinois Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act, 760
ILCS 51/1-11, when managing the University’s investments. The Board fulfills its fiduciary responsibility
for the management of investments, including endowment farm real estate, by adopting policies to
maximize investment return with a prudent level of risk.

The following details the carrying value of the System’s cash, cash equivalents, and investments as of
June 30, 2018:

U.S. government treasuries $ 4,004,501
U.S. government securities 1,499,714
Money market funds 76,313
Subtotal 5,580,528
Claim on cash and pooled investments 249,606,482
Total cash, cash equivalents and investments $ 255,187,010
ATTACHMENT 33
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Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. In accordance with its investment policy, the University employs multiple investment
managers, of which each has specific maturity assignments related to the operating funds. The funds
are structured with different layers of liquidity. Funds expected to be used within one year are
invested using the Barclay’s Capital 90-Day and Bank of America Merrill Lynch 12-month Treasury
Bill Index as performance benchmarks. Core operating funds are invested in longer maturity
investments. Core operating funds investment managers’ performance benchmarks are the Barclays
Capital one-year to three-year Government Bond Index, the Barclays Capital one-year-to-three-year
Government Credit Bond Index, the Barclays Capital Intermediate Government Credit Bond Index
and the Barclays Capital Intermediate Aggregate Bond Index.

The System’s non-pooled investments and maturities as of June 30, 2018 were as follows:

Maturities -
Less than 1 year
U.S. government treasuries b 4,004,501
U.S. government securitics 1,499,714
Money market funds 76,313

Total cash equivalents and investments $§ 5,580,528

Claim on cash and on pooled investments represents the System’s share of participation in the
University’s operating internal investment pool. At June 30, 2018, the University’s operating internal
investment portfolio had an effective duration for its interest-bearing securities of 1.5 years.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
obligations. The University’s investment policy requires that the University’s short-term operating
funds be invested in fixed income securities and other short-term fixed income instruments (e.g.,
money markets). Fixed income secutities shall be rated investment grade or better by one or more
nationally recognized statistical rating organizations. Securities not covered by the investment grade
standard are allowed if, in the manager’s judgment, those instruments are of comparable credit
quality. Securities that fall below the stated minimum credit requirements subsequent to initial
purchase may be held at the managet’s discretion.

The University reports the credit ratings of fixed income securities and short-term instruments using
Standard and Poor’s and Moody’s ratings. Securities with split ratings or with a different rating
assignment are disclosed using the rating indicative of the greatest degree of risk. At June 30, 2018,
the University’s operating internal investment pool and non-pooled investments primarily consisted
of securities with quality ratings of A or better,

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the University will
not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of
an outside party. Exposure to custodial credit risk relates to investment securities that are held by
someone other than the University and are not registered in the University’s name. The University
investment policy does not limit the value of investments that may be held by an outside party. At
June 30, 2018, the System’s investments and deposits had no custodial credit risk exposure.
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Concentration of Credit Risk

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the University’s
investment in a single issuer. The University’s investment policy provides that the total operating
funds portfolio will be broadly diversified across securities in a manner that is consistent with
fiduciary standards of diversification. Issuer concentrations are limited to 5% per issuer of the total
market value of the portfolio at the time of purchase, or in the case of securitized securities, an
individual issuance trust. These concentration limits do not apply to investments in money market
funds, tri-party repurchase agreements or obligations of, or issues guaranteed by, the U.S. Treasury,
U.S. agencies or U.S. government sponsored enterprises.

As of June 30, 2018, not more than 5% of the University’s total investments were invested in
securities of any one issuer, excluding money market funds, tri-party repurchase agreements or
obligations of, or issues guaranteed by, the U.S. Treasury, U.S. agencies or U.S. government
sponsored enterprises.

Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value of
an investment or deposit. The University does not have an overarching policy related to foreign
currency risk; however, under each investment manager’s respective fund agreement, the portfolio’s
foreign currency exposure may be unhedged or hedged back into U.S. dollars. The University’s
operating fund investments generally are not exposed to foreign currency risk.

The University invests in non-U.S. developed and emerging markets through commingled funds
invested in non-U.S. equities, private equity and absolute retumn strategies. As these funds are
reported in U.S. dollars, both price changes of the underlying securities in local markets and changes
to the value of local currencies relative to the U.S. dollar are embedded in investment retumns.

Investments and Fair Value Measurements

Accounting guidance for fair value establishes a framework for measuring fair value. That framework
provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair
value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3
measurements). The fair value hierarchy is as follows:

Level | - Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the
System has the ability to access as of the measurement date. Level | inputs would also include
investments valued at prices in aclive markets that the System has access to where transactions occur
with sufficient frequency and volume to provide reliable pricing information.

Level 2 - Significant other observable inputs other than Level 1 prices such as quoted prices for
similar assets or liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are
observable or can be corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3 - Significant unobservable inputs that reflect a reporting entity’s own assumptions about what
market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability.

A description of the valuation methodologies used for assets and liabilities measured at fair value, as
well as the general classification of such instruments pursuant to the valuation hierarchy, is set

forth below.
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Investments may be classified as Level 1 when the values are based upon unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets and generally include active listed equities. Publicly-traded
investments that have no or insignificant restrictions are classified in Level 1 of the fair value
hierarchy. Level 1 securities would include exchange traded equities.

Investments may be classified as Level 2 when the values include inputs that are directly observable
for an asset (including quoted prices for similar assets), as well as inputs that are not directly
observable for the asset. These inputs are derived principally from or corroborated by observable
market data through correlation or by other means (market-corroborated inputs). The concept of
market-corroborated inputs is intended to incorporate observable market data (such as interest rates
and yield curves that are observable at commonly quoted intervals) based upon an assessment of
factors relevant to the asset or liability. Level 2 securities include US Treasury bonds and bills, US
government agencies, international government bonds and agencies, nongovernment mortgage-
backed securities, asset backed securities, corporate bonds, commercial paper, and municipal bonds.

Investments may be classified as Level 3 when the values include inputs that are unobservable and
Level 1 and Level 2 inputs are not available. The values are based upon the best information available
under the circumstances and may include management’s own data. Level 3 securities include certain
types of inactively traded corporate bonds and equities.

The following table summarizes assets measured at fair value as of June 30, 2018, segregated by the
level of the valuation inputs within the hierarchy utilized to measure fair value:

Fair Value Measurements as of June 30, 2018

Investments in which fair value was measured based on
significant other observable inputs (Level 2):

U.S. government treasuries b 4,004,501

U.S. government securities 1,499,714

Investments subject to fair value hierarchy 5,504,215
Investments measured at cost:

Money market funds 76,313

Total cash equivalents and investments $ 5,580,528
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(3) Capital Assets

Net interest cost incurred on borrowed funds during the period of construction of capital assets is
capitalized as a component of the cost of acquiring those assets. Net interest of $1,173,769 was capitalized
during the year ended June 30, 2018. The capital assets of the System are not pledged to secure outstanding
indebtedness of the Board.

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2018 is summarized as foliows:

Capital assets

Beginning Ending
balance Additions Retirements Transfers balance
Nondepreciable capital assets:
Land h) 770,917 b 770,017
Construction in process 20,132,568 13,546,431 (27,947,936) 5,731.063
Total nondepreciable
capital assets 20,903,485 13,546,431 (27,947,936) 6,501,980
Depreciable capital assets:
Buildings 261,020,381 26,339,450 287,359,831
Leasehold improvements 2,320,152 2,320,152
Equipment 159,425,381 9,764,173 (906,196) 168,283,358
Sofiware 43,753,575 1,608,486 45362,061
Total depreciable
capital assets 466,519,489 9,764,173 (906,196) 27,947,936 503,325,402
Less aceumulated depreciation:
Buildings 118,332,218 8,923,369 127,255,587
Leasehold improvements 2,220,091 28,588 2,248,679
Equipment 132,327,525 9,257,398 {847,091) 140,737,832
Software 32,923,703 3,289,324 36,213,027
Total accumulated
depreciation 285,803,537 21,498,679 {847,091) — 306,455,125
Total depreciable
capital assets, net 180,715,952 (11,734,506) (59,105) 27,947,936 196,870,277
Total capital assets, net § 201,619,437 1,811,925 (59,105) -— § 203,372,257
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Long-Term Obligations

During fiscal year 1997, the University issued $25,000,000 of Health Services Facilitics System Revenue
Bonds Series 1997B. The bonds are variable rate bonds which bear interest at a rate determined weekly and
paid monthly. Proceeds from the bonds were used to finance the costs of a new ambulatory care facility in
Chicago, a medical office building in Rockford, Illinois and to pay costs incidental to the issuance of
the bonds.

During fiscal year 2008, the University issued $41,215,000 Variable Rate Demand Health Services
Facilities System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2008. The bonds are variable rate bonds which bear
interest at a rate determined weekly. Proceeds from the bonds funded the redemption of the Variable Rate
Demand Health Services Facilities System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2007 on July 28, 2008 and
paid costs incidental to the issuance of the bonds. The difference between the reacquisition price and net
carrying amount of the old debt, toss on refunding, was $4,485,000. This loss is deferred and amortized as a
component of interest expense aver the remaining life of the old debt or the life of the new debt, whichever
is shorter.

During fiscal year 2014, the University issued $70,785,000 Health Services Facilities System Revenue
Bonds, Series 2013. The bonds are fixed rate bonds which bear interest payable on April 1 and October 1 of
each year. Proceeds from the bonds are being used to finance the costs of certain construction, renovation
and equipment purchases for the System and to pay costs incidental to the issuance of the Series 2013
Bonds. The bond premium, $591,216, is deferred and amortized over the remaining life of the issue.

Long-term obligations activity for the year ended June 30, 2018 was as follows:

Long—term obligations
Rate on Junc 30 Fiscal year Beginning Ending Current
Series outstanding debt  maturity dates balance Additions Deductions balance partion
Bonds payable:
1997B Vanable 2019-2027 § 12,400,000 § $ (1,000,000 $§ 11,400,000 § 1,100,000
2008 Variahle 2015 - 2027 29,060,000 (2,485,000} 26,575,000 2,520,000
2013 5% 10 6.25% 2028 - 2043 70,785,000 70,785,000
112,245,000 — (3,485,000} 108,760,000 3,620,000
Unamortized premiuim 513,439 (20,335} 493,104 20,334
Total bonds payable 112,758,439 — (3,505,335) 109,253,104 3,640,334
Other obligations 1,341,133 (1,144,352} 196,781 196,781
Total long-term debt 114,099,572 (4,649,687) 109,449,885 1,837,115
Compensated absences 25,003,719 3,446,770 (1,946,306} 26,504,183 2,137,664
Total long-term cbligations $ 139103291 § 3,446,770 § (6,595,993} § 135.954.068 § 5,974,779
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The bonds do not constitute obligations of the State of Illinois. Bond principal and interest payments are
funded from revenues pledged from (a) System net revenues, principally consisting of all charges, income
and revenues received from the continued use and operation of the System remaining after providing
sufficient funds for the reasonable and necessary cost of currently maintaining, repairing, insuring and
operating the System, (b) Medical Service Plan (MSP) revenues net of bad debt expense and contractual
allowances and (c) College of Medicine tuition revenue. These revenues for the year ended June 30, 2018

are as follows:

Sysiem net revenues 3 76,985,159
Adjusted MSP revenues 238,535,817
College of Medicine student tuition 53,784,043

Total $ 369,305,019

The table below shows the amount of revenues pledged for future principal and interest payments on
the bonds:

Pledged revenues

Debt service

Source of Future to pledged
revenue Fevenues Term of revenues
Bond issue(s) Purpose pledged pledged’ commitment  (current year)
System net revenues, MSP
Series 1997B, Additions to System revenues net of bad debt
2008 and 2013 and Refunding and contractual allowances,
College of Medicine tuition  § 191,973,056 2043 2.40%

' Total estimated future principal and interest payments on debt

The resolutions authorizing the bonds provides for the establishment of separate funds as follows: Revenue
Fund, Project Fund, Repair and Replacement Reserve, Equipment Reserve, Bond and Interest Sinking Fund
and Development Reserve. All income and revenues received from the continued use and operation of the
System, as provided for by the Bond Resolution, are to be deposited in the Revenue Fund and used to pay
necessary operation and maintenance expenses of the System. The Bond Resolution also requires transfers

to funds as follows:

Project Fund — at the discretion of the University Comptroller, amounts not needed to complete
construction and renovation projects specified in the Bond Resolution are required to be transferred either to
the Repair and Replacement Reserve or to the Bond and Interest Sinking Fund.

Repair and Replacement Reserve — an amount calculated as specified in the Bond Resolution to provide for
the cost of unusual maintenance and repairs.

Equipment Reserve — an amount approved by the Board for the acquisition of movable equipment to be
installed in the facilities constituting the System. The reserve may not exceed 20% of the book value of the
movable equipment of the System.

Bond and Interest Sinking Fund — amounts transferred into the Bond and Interest Sinking Fund sufficient to
pay principal and interest as it becomes due on the outstanding bonds.
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Development Reserve — an amount approved by the Board for System development. No transfers were
authorized by the Board during the year ended June 30, 2018, and there was not a balance in the reserve at
June 30, 2018,

The System made all required transfers for the year ended June 30, 2018.

After fulfillment of the provisions described above, the surplus, if any, remaining in the Revenue Fund may
be used at the Board’s option (a) to redeem bonds of the System which are subject to early redemption,
(b) to improve or add facilities to the System, or (c) for any other lawful purpose.

Assets restricted by Bond Resolution were held for the following purposes at June 30, 2018:

(@)

Restricted assets:

Cash and investments $ 28,441,194
Purpose:
Capital projects, bond projects $ 7,726,277
Repair and replacement reserve 19,558,831
Bond and interest sinking fund 1,156,086
Total assets limited as to use 28,441,194
Less amounts required for current liabilities (1,140,445)
Total for long-term use $ 27,300,749

Health Services Facilities Systemt Variable Rate Debt and Interest Rate Swap Agreement

Demand Provisions

The System’s Series 1997B and 2008 bonds mature serially through October 2026. These bonds have
variable interest rates that are adjusted periodically (i.e., daily, weekly, or monthly), generally with
interest paid at the beginning of each month. The bonds are subject to purchase on the demand of the
holder at a price equal to principal plus accrued interest on seven days’ notice and delivery to the
University’s remarketing agents. The University pays the remarketing agent fees on the outstanding
bond balance. If the remarketing agent is unable to resell any bonds that are “put” to the agent, the
University has a standby bond purchase agreement with a liquidity facility entity. The University has
several such agreements, with the fees on the Bond Purchase Commitment (formula based on
outstanding bonds plus pro forma interest). The University, in the event a liquidity facility is utilized,
has reimbursement agreements with associated financial entities. Generally, the payback period, in
which the initial payment is due 366 days after the agreement takes effect, is five to seven years, at an
interest rate initially set at slightly above prime or the federal funds rate.

The required future interest payments for these variable rate bonds have been calculated using the
current interest rate, based upon short-term tax-exempt rates, or the synthetic fixed rate, as illustrated
in the table below:

Variable rate bonds at June 30, 2018

Intereat rate

at Jume 30, Remarketing Remarketing Liguoidity facitity
Bond issues 2018 agent fee Bank Expiration Insured by Fee
HSFS, Series 19978 1.55% JPMorgen Securities 0.070%  Wells Fargo May 30,2019 Letter of Credit 0 72%
HSFS, Senes 2008 149 Goldman Sachs 0070 Wells Fargo May 30,2019 T.etter of Credit 072
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Interest Rate Swap Agreement

In fiscal year 2009, the University entered into a variable-to-fixed interest rate swap agreement with
Loop Financial Products I LLC (Loop). The purpose of this interest rate swap was to hedge the Series
2008 debt by effectively changing the variable interest rate on the bonds to a synthetic fixed rate.
When the swap agreement was entered, the notional amount of the swap was $40,875,000. In
accordance with the swap agreement, the University makes monthly payments to the counterparty
(Loop) equal to 3.534% of the notional amount and receives monthly payments from Loop equal to
68% of the one-month London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR). The swap will terminate in October
2026. As of June 30, 2018, the notional amount of the swap was $26,360,000.

The University engaged a third-party consultant to determine the fair value of the swap agreement.
The fair value provided by the consultant was derived from proprietary models based upon well-
recognized financial principles and reasonable estimates about relevant market conditions. The fair
value (Level 2 measurement) is recognized as a noncurrent liability and was $1,868,697 as of
June 30, 2018.

In connection with the interest rate swap agreement, the University may be exposed to various types
of risk:

Credit Risk — As of June 30, 2018, the University was not exposed to credit risk because the swap had
a negative fair value. If interest rates change and the fair value of the swap becomes positive, the
University would be exposed to credit risk in the amount of the derivative’s fair value. The
counterparty may have to post collateral in the University’s favor in certain conditions, and the
University would never be required to post collateral in the counterparty’s favor.

Interest Rate Risk — During fiscal year 2018, low interest rates exposed the University to interest rate
risk, which adversely affected the fair value of the swap agreement.

Termination Risk — The swap is scheduled to terminate in October 2026, The University has the
option to terminate the swap early. The University or Loop may terminate the swap if the other party
fails to perform under the terms of the contract. The University may terminate the swap if both credit
ratings of the counterparties fall below BBB+ as issued by Standard & Poor’s and Baal as issued by
Moody’s Tnvestors Service. As of June 30, 2018, the counterparty (Loop) credit rating by Standard &
Poor’s was A- and by Moody’s Investors Service was Baal.

If the swap is terminated, the Series 2008 variable-rate bonds would no longer carry a synthetic fixed
interest rate. In addition, if at the time of termination, the swap has a negative fair value, the
University would be liable to Loop for a payment equal to the swap’s fair value.

Basis Risk — The swap exposes the University to basis risk should the relationship between LIBOR
and the variable weekly rate determined by the remarketing agent change, changing the synthetic rate
on the bonds. If a change occurs that results in the difference in rates widening, the expected cost
savings may not be realized.

Other Risks - Since the swap agreement extends to the maturity of the Series 2008 bonds, it does not
expose the University to rollover risk. In addition, the University is not exposed to foreign currency
risk associated with this swap agreement. The University is not exposed to market access risk as of
June 30, 2018. However, if the University decides to issue refunding bonds and credit is more costly
at that time, it could be exposed to market access risk.
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(b) Debt Service Requirements

Future estimated debt service requirements for the Series 1997B, 2008 and 2013 Bonds at June 30,
2018 were as follows:

Principal Interest

2019 $ 3,620,000 $ 5,297,537
2020 3,755,000 5,188,656
2021 3,900,000 5,076,093
2022 4,045,000 4,959,136
2023 4,200,000 4,838,177
2024 - 2028 21,180,000 22,229,488
2029 - 2033 16,250,000 18,312,681
2034 - 2038 21,955,000 12,610,750
2039 - 2043 29,855,000 4,700,538

Total debt service 108,760,000 $ 83,213,056
Unamortized premium 493,104

Total bonds payable $ 109,253,104

The required debt service for the variable rate Series 1997B and 2008 Bonds has been calculated
using the current interest rate of 1.55% and 1.49%, respectively, over the remaining life of the bonds.

Using the actual rate in effect as of June 30, 2018 (1.49% for Series 2008), debt service requirements
of the Series 2008 variable rate debt and net swap payments, assuming current interest rates remain
the same for their term, were as follows. As rates vary, variable-rate bond interest payments and net
swap payments will also vary.

Health Services Facilities System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2008
Variable-Rate Debt Service Requirements

Variable rate bonds Interest rate

Principal Interest swaps, net Total

2019 $ 2,520,000 395,967 479,700 $ 3,395,667
2020 2,655,000 358,420 425,419 3,438,839
2021 2,700,000 318,860 370,500 3,389,360
2022 2,845,000 278,630 312,372 3,436,002
2023 2,900,000 236,239 253,436 3,389,675
2024 - 2027 12,955,000 490,136 363,066 13,808,202

Total $ 26,575,000 2,078,252 2,204,493 § 30,857,745

Another obligation consists of a third-party financing arrangement for equipment, which has a
maturity date through 2019 and an interest rate of 1.64%.
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As of June 30, 2018, future minimum payments under other obligations are as follows:

Principal Interest
2019 $ 196,781 § 3,235
Total minimum payments — other obligations $ 196,781 % 3,235

(5) Operating Leases

The System leases various real property and equipment under operating lease agreements, including leases
renewed on an annual basis. Total rental expense under these agreements was $2,005,031 for the year ended

June 30, 2018.

As of June 30, 2018, future minimum payments under operating leases are as follows:

2019 $ 1,323,180
2020 1,185,806
2021 631,157
2022 561,640
2023 212,606
2024 - 2026 253,571

Total minimum payments — operating leases $ 4,167,960

(6) Patient Accounts Receivable

Patient accounts receivable as of June 30, 2018, reported as current assets, consisted of the following
amounts:

Patient accounts receivable, net of contractual allowances and charity care:

Medicaid managed care $ 137,123,638
HMO/PPO 99,030,979
Medicaid 35,793,871
Commercial insurance 33,308,399
Medicare managed care 28,514,323
Medicare 22,585,162
Self-pay and other 13,745,875
Total 370,102,247

Less allowance for uncollectible accounts (208,000,305)
Total patient accounts receivable, net $ 162,101,942
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The System granis credit without collateral to its patients, most of whom are local residents and are insured
under third-party payor agreements. The mix of receivables from patients and third-party payors at June 30,
2018 was as follows:

Medicaid managed care 371 %
HMO/PPO 26.8
Medicaid 9.7
Commercial insurance 9.0
Medicare managed care 7.7
Medicare 6.0
Self-pay and other 3.7
100.0 %

Net Patient Service Revenues

Approximately 93% of the System’s net patient service revenue was derived from Medicare, Medicaid and
managed care programs for the year ended June 30, 2018. Reimbursement under these programs provided
payments to the System at amounts different from its established rates, based on a specific amount per case,
or a contracted price, for rendering services to program beneficiaries. The System records contractual
allowances in the current period representing the difference between charges for services rendered and the
expected payments under these programs, and adjusts them in future periods as final settlements through
cost reports or other means as determined.

Net patient service revenue for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018 was as follows:

Medicaid managed care $ 804,249,774
HMO/PPO 629,109,385
Medicare 516,823,441
Medicaid 172,656,223
Medicare managed care 200,895,608
Commercial insurance 64,016,332
Self-pay and other 120,401,998
Total gross revenue 2,508,152,761
Less:
Contractual allowances (1,760,762,492)
Provision for uncollectible accounts (26,308,488)
Net patient revenue 5 721,081,781

A summary of the payment arrangements with major third-party payers follows:

Medicare and Medicare Managed Care — Inpatient services rendered to Medicare program beneficiaries
are paid at prospectively determined rates. These rates vary according to a patient classification system that
is based on clinical, diagnostic and other factors. Inpatient services are paid at prospectively determined
rates that are based on the patients’ diagnosis. Outpatient payments to the Hospital are based on a
predetermined package rate based on services provided to patients. The Hospital is reimbursed for certain
services at tentative rates with final settlement determined after submission of annual cost reports by the
Hospital and audits thereof by the Medicare fiscal intermediary. The System’s Medicare cost reports have
been audited by the Medicare fiscal intermediary through June 30, 2012. For the fiscal year ended June 30,
2018, changes in estimates related to the settlement of cost reports have been recognized as an increase in
net patient service revenue of approximately $2,014,000 as a resuit of settled cost reports and changes in
estimates related to services rendered in previous years.
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Medicaid and Medicaid Managed Care — Services are reimbursed at prospectively determined rates.
Medicaid payment methodologies and rates for services rendered are subject to change and the amount of
funding available to the University of Illinois Hospital Services Fund. Such changes could have a
significant effect on the System’s revenues.

HMO/PPO — The System has payment agreements with certain health maintenance organizations (HMOs)
and preferred provider organizations (PPOs). The basis for payment under these agreements includes
prospectively determined rates-per-discharge, discounts from established charges, prospectively determined
daily rates and capitated per-member per-month rates.

Retirement and Postemployment Benefits

(a)

Retirement Benefits

General Information about the Pension Plan

Plan Description: The University contributes to the State Universities Retirement System of [linois
(SURS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plan with a special funding situation
whereby the State makes substantially all actuarially determined required contributions on behalf of
the participating employers. SURS was established July 21, 1941 to provide retirement annuities and
other benefits for staff members and employees of State universities, certain affiliated organizations,
and certain other State educational and scientific agencies and for survivors, dependents and other
beneficiaries of such employees. SURS is considered a component unit of the State’s financial
reporting entity and is included in the State’s financial reports as a pension trust fund. SURS is
governed by Chapter 40, Act 5. Article 15 of the llinois Compiled Statutes. SURS issues a publicly
available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information.
That report may be obtained by accessing the website at www.surs.org.

Benefits Provided: A traditional benefit plan was established in 1941. Public Act 90-0448 enacted
effective January 1, 1998, established an aiternative defined benefit program known as the portable
benefit package. The traditional and portable plan Tier 1 refers to members that began participation
prior to January 1, 2011. Public Act 96-0889 revised the traditional and portable benefit plans for
members who begin participation on or after January 1, 2011, and who do not have eligible llinois
reciprocal system services. The revised plan is referred to as Tier 2. New employees are allowed 6
months after their date of hire to make an irrevocable election. A summary of the benefit provisions
as of June 30, 2017 can be found in the SURS’ comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) Notes
to the Financial Statements.

Eligible employees must participate upon initial employment. Employees are ineligible to participate
if (a) employed after having attained age 68; (b) employed less than 50% of full time; or (c) employed
less than full time and attending classes with an employer. Of those University employees ineligible
to participate, the majority are students at the University.

Contributions: The State is primarily responsible for funding SURS on behalf of the individual
employers at an actuarially determined amount. Public Act 88-0593 provides a Statutory Funding
Plan consisting of two parts: (i) a ramp-up period from 1996 to 2010 and (ii) a period of contributions
equal to a level percentage of the payroll of active members of the System to reach 90% of the total
Actuarial Accrued Liability by the end of Fiscal Year 2045. Employer contributions from “trust,
federal, and other funds” are provided under Section 15-155(b) of the Illinois Pension Code and
require employers to pay contributions which are sufficient to cover the accruing normal costs on
behalf of applicable employees. The employer normal cost for fiscal year 2017 and 2018 respectively,
was 12.53% and 12.46% of employee payroll. The normal cost is equal to the value of current year’s
pension benefit and does not include any allocation for past unfunded liability or interest on the
unfunded liability. Plan members are required to contribute 8.0% of their annual covered salary. The
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contribution requirements of plan members and employers are established and may be amended by
the Illinois General Assembly.

Participating employers make contributions toward separately financed specific liabilities under
Section 15-139.5(e) of the Illinois Pension Code (relating to contributions payable due to the
employment of “affected annuitants™ or specific return to work annuitants) and Section 15-155(g)
(relating to contributions payable due to earning increases exceeding 6% during the final rate of
earnings period).

Pension Liabilities, Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions

Net Pension Liability: The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2017. At June 30, 2017,
SURS reported a net pension liability of $25,481,105,995.

Employer Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability: The amount of the proportionate share of the
net pension liability to be recognized for the System is $0. The proportionate share of the State’s net
pension liability associated with the System is $2,068,800,122. This amount should not be recognized
in the financial statement. The net pension liability and total pension liability as of June 30, 2617 was
determined based on the June 30, 2016 actuarial valuation rolled forward. The basis of allocation used
in the proportionate share of net pension liability is the actual reported pensionable earnings made to
SURS during fiscal year 2017.

Pension Expense: At June 30, 2017 SURS reported a colleciive net pension expense of
$2,412,518,129.

Employer Proportionate Share of Pension Expense: The employer proportionate share of collective
pension expense should be recognized similarly to on-behalf payments as both revenue and matching
expenditure in the financial statements. The basis of allocation used in the proportionate share of
collective pension expense is the actual reported pensionable contributions made to SURS during
fiscal year 2017. As a result, the University recognized on-behalf revenue and pension expense of
$1,040,720,544 for fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, of which $195,903,879 was related to the
System.

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions: Deferred
outflows of resources are the consumption of net position by SURS that is applicable to future
reporting periods.

SURS Collective Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources by Sources

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources
Difference between expected and actual experience $ 139,193,227 § 1,170,771
Changes in assumption 205,004,315 259,657,577
Net difference between projected and actual earnings
on pension plan investments 94,620,827
Total $ 438818369 $ 260,828,348
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SURS Collective Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of
Resources by Year to be Recognized in Future Pension Expense

Year Ending June 30 Net Deferred Qutflows of Resources

2018 $ 55,589,850
2019 187,874,276
2020 90,475,551
2021 (155,949,656)
2022 -

Thereafter -
Total $ 177,990,021

Assumptions and Other Inputs

Actuarial assumptions: The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2017 valuation were based on
the results of an actuarial experience study for the period June 30, 2010 — 2014. The total pension
liability in the June 30, 2017 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial
assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation 2.75 percent
Salary increases 3.75 to 15.00 percent, including inflation
Investment rate of return 7.25 percent beginning with the actuarial

valuation as of June 30, 2014

Mortality rates were based on the RP2014 Combined Mortality Table with projected generational
mortality and a separate mortality assumption for disabled participants.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns,
net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These
ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected
future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.
Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return were adopted by the plan’s trustees after considering
input from the plan’s investment consultant(s) and actuary(s). For each major asset class that is
included in the pension plan’s target asset allocation as of June 30, 2017, these best estimates are
summarized in the following table:
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Weighted Average Long:
Term Expected Real
Asset Class Target Allocation Rate of Return
U.S. Equity 23% 6.08%
Private Equity 6% 8.73%
Non-U.S. Equity 19% 7.34%
Global Equity 8% 6.85%
Fixed Income 19% 1.38%
Treasury-Inflation Protected Securities 4% 1.17%
Emerging Market Debt 3% 4.14%
Real Estate REITS 4% 5.75%
Direct Real Estate 6% 4.62%
Commodities 2% 4.23%
Hedged Strategies 5% 3.95%
Opportunity Fund 1% 6.71%
Total 100% 5.20%
Inflation 2.75%
Expected Arithmetic Return 7.95%

Discount Rate: A single discount rate of 7.09% was used to measure the total pension liability. This
single discount rate was based on an expected rate of return on pension plan investments of 7.250%
and a municipal bond rate of 3.56% (based on the weekly rate closest to but not later than the
measurement date of the 20-Year Bond Buyer Index as published by the Federal Reserve). The
projection of cash flows used to determine this single discount rate were the amounts of contributions
attributable to current plan members and assumed that plan member contributions will be made at the
current contribution rate and that employer contributions will be made at rates equal to the statutory
contribution rates under SURS’ funding policy. Based on these assumptions, the pension plan’s
fiduciary net position and future contributions were sufficient to finance the benefit payments through
the year 2073. As a result, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was
applied to projected benefit payments through the year 2073, and the municipal bond rate was applied
to all benefit payments after that date.

Sensitivity of the SURS’ Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate: Regarding the
sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the single discount rate, the following presents the
plan’s net pension liability, calculated using a single discount rate of 7.09%, as well as what the
plan’s net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a single discount rate that is 1-
percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher:

Current Single Discount
1% Decrease 6.09% Rate Assumption 7.09% 1% Increase 8.09%
$30,885,146,279 $25,481,105,995 $20,997,457,586

Additional information regarding the SURS basic financial statements including the Plan Net Position
can be found in the SURS comprehensive annual financial report by accessing the website at

www.SURS.org.
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Postemployment Benefits

Plan description: The State Employees Group Insurance Act of 1971 (“Act”), as amended, authorizes
the Illinois State Employees Group Insurance Program (“SEGIP”) to provide health. dental, vision,
and life insurance benefits for certain retirees and their dependents. Substantially all of the
University’s full-time employees are members of SEGIP. Members receiving monthly benefits from
the General Assembly Retirement System (“GARS”), Judges Retirement System (“JRS”), State
Employees’ Retirement System of Iilinois (“SERS”), Teachers’ Retirement System (“TRS"), and
State Universities Retirement System of Iilinois (*SURS™) are eligible for these other post-
employment benefits (‘OPEB™). The eligibility provisions for the SURS members were defined
within Note 8(a). The University’s employees can only be eligible members of the SURS,

The Department of Central Management Services administers these benefits for annuitants with the
assistance of the public retirement systems sponsored by the State (GARS, JRS, SERS, TRS and
SURS). The State recognizes SEGIP OPEB benefits as a single-employer defined benefit plan. The
plan does not issue a stand-alone financial report.

Benefits provided: The health, dental, and vision benefits provided to and contribution amounts
required from annuitants are the result of collective bargaining between the State and the various
unions representing the State’s and the State universities’ employees in accordance with limitations
established in the Act. Therefore, the benefits provided and contribution amounts are subject to
periodic change. Coverage through SEGIP becomes secondary to Medicare after Medicare eligibility
has been reached. Members must entoll in Medicare Parts A and B to receive the subsidized SEGIP
premium available to Medicare eligible participants. The Act requires the State to provide life
insurance benefits for annuitants equal to their annual salary as of the last day of employment until
age 60, at which time, the benefit amount becomes $5,000.

Funding policy and annual other postemployment benefit cost. OPEB offered through SEGIP are
financed through a combination of retiree premiums, State contributions and Federal government
subsidies from the Medicare Part D program. Contributions are deposited in the Health Insurance
Reserve Fund, which covers both active State employees and retirement members. Annuitants may
be required to contribute towards health and vision benefits with the amount based on factors such as
date of retirement, years of credited service with the State, whether the annuitant is covered by
Medicare, and whether the annuitant has chosen a managed health care plan. Annuitants who retired
prior to January 1, 1998, and who are vested in the State Employee’s Retirement System do not
contribute toward health and vision benefits, For annuitants who retired on or after January 1, 1998,
the annuitant’s contribution amount is reduced five percent for each year of credited service with the
State allowing those annuitants with twenty or more years of credited service to not have to contribute
towards health and vision benefits. All annuitants are required to pay for dental benefits regardless of
retirement date. The Director of Central Management Services shall, on an annual basis, determine
the amount the State shall contribute toward the basic program of group health benefits. State
contributions are made primarily from the General Revenue Fund on a pay-as-you-go basis. No
assets are accumulated or dedicated to funding the retiree health insurance benefit and a separate trust
has not been established for the funding of OPEB.

For fiscal year 2018, the annua) cost of the basic program of group health, dental, and vision benefits
before the State’s contribution was $10,926.24 ($6,145.92 if Medicare eligible) if the annuitant chose
benefits provided by a health maintenance organization and $14,939.04 (35,165.04 if Medicare
eligible) if the annuitant chose other benefits. The State is not required to fund the plan other than the
pay-as-you-go amount necessary to provide the current benefits to retirees.

ATTACHMENT 33
{(Continued)

30
72



®)

(10)

#2020-02

Related-Party Transactions

The University charged the System for administrative and other services totaling $13,056,116 in fiscal year
2018. These charges represent a portion of the estimated administrative and other service costs incuired by
the University in support of the System. An additional $28,018,039 was paid by the University on behalf of
the System for salaries and other costs for the year ended June 30, 2018, in exchange for System services
and facilities provided, and are recognized as operating expenses (salaries and general) and operating
revenues.

The System provides funds to the College of Medicine to support programmatic initiatives that benefit the
System’s strategic goals and to pay for salaries of physicians and staff in the College of Medicine who serve
as medical directors and physician leaders of the System under various agreements. During fiscal year 2018,
approximately $38.9 million was recognized in salaries and wages and supplies and general expenses by the
System under these agreements.

The System provides funds to the University’s College of Pharmacy under various arrangements to pay for
salaries of clinical pharmacists, faculty and residents and to support programs that benefit the System’s
clinical operations. During fiscal year 2018, approximately $10.5 million was recognized in salaries and
wages and supplies and general expenses under these arrangements.

The System contracts with the College of Pharmacy to provide certain pharmacy services related to the
Federal drug discount program under Section 340b of the Public Health Service Act, under which the
System is a covered entity and purchases drugs for dispensing to eligible outpatients. During fiscal year
2018, the System paid approximately $9.4 million to the College of Pharmacy for these services,

The College of Pharmacy also provides various community benefit programs to patients and constituents of
the System. During fiscal year 2018, the System paid approximately $5.3 million to the College of
Pharmacy to support these programs.

Most healthcare services rendered by physicians at the University are charged, billed and collected through
the MSP. For ambulatory care services, there is a charge for both professional and technical components.
Based on the underlying agreements between the MSP and the System, the System remits certain funds
collected to the MSP. Total MSP remittances from the System for the year ended June 30, 2018 relating to
the delivery of ambulatory care were approximately $18.4 million.

During 2018, various departments within the College of Medicine agreed to reimburse the System for a
portion of the expenses related to the resident and fellowship training program. This reimbursement, which
totaled $3.5 million, has been reflected in the financiat statements as a reduction of the related expenses.
Commitments and Contingencies
(a) Commitments
At June 30, 2018, the System had commitments on various construction projects and contracts for
repairs and renovation of health services facilities of §9,285,206.
(b} Contingencies

The University (including the System) is involved in regulatory audits arising in the normal course of
business.

In 2016, the System received notices from Medicare requiring that it provide documentation for
certain claims as part of the Recovery Audit Contractor (RAC) program. The System has responded
to these requests. Review of claims through the RAC program may result in a liability to Medicare
which could have a material impact on the System’s net patient service revenues.
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The University (including the System) is a defendant in a number of legal actions primarily related to
medical malpractice. These legal actions have been considered in estimating the University’s accrued
self-insurance liability, which covers hospital and medical professional/general liability; estimated
general and contractual liability, and workers’ compensation liability. At June 30, 2018, the
University’s total accrued self-insurance liability was $235,048,295.

The University’s accrued self-insurance liability includes $167,816,970 at June 30, 2018, for the most
probable and reasonably estimable ultimate cost of medical malpractice liabilities. Ultimate cost
consists of amounts estimated by the University’s risk management division and actuaries for asserted
claims, unasserted claims arising from reported incidents, expected litigation expenses and amounts
determined by actuaries using relevant industry data and System specific data to cover projected
losses for claims incurred but not yet reported. The System contributes to the University’s
self-insurance reserve through annual assessments. Therefore, no liability related to medical
malpractice claims is included in the System’s financial statements, but the entire self-insurance
liability is reflected in the University’s financial statements.

In 2004, the Office of the Inspector General of the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
(OIG) conducted an audit of the Medicaid disproportionate share hospital (DSH) programs in ten
states for the years 1997 through 2000, including the State of Illinois. The OIG’s audit report
indicated that the State of Illinois’ Medicaid DSH payments exceeded hospital-specific limits, and
that the Federal share of those overpayments was $145.8 million, of which $140.3 million related to
payments made to the University’s hospital. The Illinois Department of Healthcare and Family
Services (IDHFS) believes it followed guidelines published by the U. S. Centers for Medicare and
Medicaid Services (CMMS) and that its methodology for calculating the hospital-specific limit had
consistently been approved by CMMS. However, on July 25, 2016, CMMS issued a formal notice to
IDHFS that it had adopted the OIG’s recommendation and was requesting repayment by IDHFS of
the $140.3 million associated with the University’s hospital. In January 2017, IDHFS filed an appeal
notice with the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services Departmental Appeals Board. On
April 2, 2018, the Departmental Appeals Board rendered a decision in favor of CMMS, sustaining the
disallowance of DSH payments to the State as calculated by OIG. In June 2018, IDHFS filed a
motion with the Departmental Appeals Board to reconsider its decision. Please refer to note 11 for
activity subsequent to June 30, 2018 related to the audit and its appeals process.

(11) Subsequent Events

In September 2018, IDHFS notified the System that it will not seek recovery of the $140.3 million
disallowance from the System or University in the event any further administrative or legal challenges by
IDHFS are unsuccessful in whole or in part, settled or exhausted without a favorable decision. The
University has agreed to continue to take any actions or steps requested by IDHFS in support of IDHFS’s
further appeals of this matter.
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UNIVERSITY OF ILLINOIS
HEALTH SERVICES FACILITIES SYSTEM

Required Supplementary Information
Year Ended June 30, 2018

Schedule of University of llinois Health

Services Facilities System Proportionate Share  Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
of the Net Pension Liability 2017 2016 2015 2014
(a) Proportion Percentage of the Collective
Net Pension Liability 0% 0% 0% 0%
(b} Proportion Amount of the Collective
Net Pension Liability 50 30 $0 $0

(c) Portion of Nonemployer Contributing
Entities' Total Proportion of Collective
Net Pension Liability associated with

Employer $2,068,800,122
Total (b) +(c) $2,068,800,122
Cmployer defined benefit Covered Payroll* $274,251,179

Proportion of Collective Net Pension Liability
associated with Employer as a percentage of
DB covered payroll 754.35%

SURS Plan Net Position as a Percentage of Total
Pension Liability 42.04%

$2.016,718,081 $1,770.601,518 $1,546,893.194
$2,016,718,081 $1,770,601,518 §1,546,893,194
$265,271,833  $253,062,776 $260,376,968

760.25% 699.67% 594.10%

39.57% 42.37% 44.39%

* (GA SB Statement #82 amended GA SB Statements #67 & #68 to require the presentation of covered payroll,
dcfined as payroll on which contributions to a pension plan are based, and ratios that use that measure. For the
SURS plans, the covered payroll are those employees within the defined benefit plan.
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UNIVERSITY OF ILLINOIS
HEALTH SERVICES FACILITIES SYSTEM

Notes to Reguired Supplementary Information
June 30, 2018

Changes of benefit terms. There were no benefit changes recognized in the Total Pension Liability as of
June 30, 2017.

Changes of assumptions. In accordance with Illinois Compiled Statutes, an actuarial review is to be performed at
least once every three years to determine the reasonableness of actuarial assumptions regarding the retirement,
disability, mortality, turnover, interest and salary of the members and benefit recipients of SURS. An experience
review for the years June 30, 2010 to June 30, 2014 was performed in February 2015, resuiting in the adoption of
new assumptions as of June 30, 2015.

Mortality rates, Change from the RP 2000 Mortality table projected to 2017, sex distinct, to the RP-2014
mortality tables with projected generational mortality improvement. Change to a separate mortality
assumption for disabled participants.

Salary increases. Change assumption to service-based rates, ranging from 3.75 percent to 15.00 percent
based on years of service, with underlying wage inflation of 3.75 percent.

Normal retirement rates. Change to retirement rates at ages younger than 60, age 66, and ages 70-79 to
reflect observed experiences.

Early retirement rates. Change to a slight increase to the rates at ages 55 and 56.

Turnover rates. Change to produce lower expected turnover for members with less than 10 years of
service and higher turnover for members with more than 10 years of service than the currently
assumed rates.

Disability rates. Decrease rates and have separate rates for males and females to reflect observed
experience.

Dependent assumption. Maintain the current assumption on marital status that varies by age and sex and
the assumption that males are three years older than their spouses.

*Note: The System implemented GASB No. 68 in fiscal year 2015. The information above is presented for as
many years as available. The Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years.
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operating performance to provide a sufficient cushion to cope with the possibility of reduced or delayed state
funding. It also incorporates our expectation that any shift to U of | of payment responsibility for annual pension
costs will be over a8 medium to longer term, providing sufficient time for it to adjust operations to absorb the

additional cash outlay.
FACTORS THAT COULD LEAD TO AN UPGRADE

- Multi-year matsrial improvement in the state's fiscal condition resulting in greater predictability in the amount
and timing of state support

- Substantial growth in balance sheet reserves to mitigate exposure to volatile or declining state funding
FACTORS THAT COULD LEAD TO A DOWNGRADE
- Material weakening of liquidity or inability to maintain sound operating performance

- Substantial, sustained dectine in directly paid state operating support or benefits provided through "on behalf"
payments

- Material adverse changes in federal funding for research or health care reimbursement
- Weaker pledged revenue coverage of the AFS, South Campus or HSFS bonds
LEGAL SECURITY

The Academic Facllities Lease Revenue Bonds are secured by lease payments paid by University of lliinois
directly to the bond trustes to fund debt service. U of I's lease can be terminated in the event of non
appropriation in the budget and absence of other legally available non-appropriated funds. The base rent is not
subject to diminution, abatement, suspension or other reductions, The payments are from legally avallable
non-appropriated funds, similar to the COPs. There Is no debt service reserve fund. The trustee will have a
mortgage lien on PG-UIUC's interest from the leases on the two facilities. If the university falls to pay the leass
payments when due, PG-UIUC can accelerate U of I's lease payments to fully redeem the outstanding bonds.
PG-UIUC has Irrevocably appointed U of | as attorney in fact in the event of default and the university can
assume full control, Given U of I's ample legally available non-appropriated funds comprised largely of student
net tuition and fees, no distinction is currently made between the lease revenue bonds and the AFS ratings.

The Auxiliary Faclliities System bonds are payable from net revenue of the AFS system, which Is a closed
system not accessible to fund general operating expenses, and student tuition and faes. There is an additional
bonds test and a rate covenant that Net System Revenues and Student Tuition and Fees to be at least 2.0x
maximum annual net debt service. Fiscal 2018 pledged revenues wera $1.29 billion and provide over 13x
coverage of maximum annual net debt service.

The Certificates of Participation are payable from legally avallable non-appropriated funds on a subordinate
basis from revenue pledged to other bonds. U of | covenants to include the required debt service in its annual
budget requests. The purchase contract and the university's obligation to make instaliment payments can he
terminated in the event of both non-appropriation by the state and the absence of other legaily available funds
to pay debt service, Given U of I's ample legally available non-appropriated funds comprised largely of student
net tuition and fees, no distinction is currently made between the COPs and secured AFS ratings.

The South Campus Bonds are payable from the UIC South Campus Development Project, consisting of
incremental taxes received by the City of Chicago (Ba1 stable); student tuition and fees, subject to prior
pledges; and funds on deposit in the Bond and Interest Sinking Fund Account, including deposits from legally
available non-appropriated funds. Net proceeds from completed land sales related to the project are also
pledged to the 2003 Bonds. There is a 1.10x rate covenant, including student tultion and fees after providing
for any Student Tuition and Fees subject to a prior pledge of other outstanding bonds. The real estate tax
base of the project area was frozen when designated as a TIF district and incremental tax revenue recelved
from the newly developed or redeveloped properties is pledged to the university through 2023. For fiscal 2018
coverage on the $8.15 million Maximum Annual Debt Service was 0.62x from the TIF revenue alone and 1.1x
including other fransferred avallable funds and university funds.

The Health Services Facilities System bonds are securad by (1) net revenues of the system; (2) Medical
Service Plan (MSP) revenues (faculty practice plan), net of bad debt expense; and (3) College of Medicine net
tuition revenue (subordinated to the pledge of tuition and fees to the AFS Bonds). Although the health system
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revenues of $77 million provide the first source of security, the pledges from MSP and the College of Medicine
provide enhancement, The pledge of MSP revenues and medical school tuition is up to maximum annual debt
service. Total fiscal 2018 pledged revenues totaled $339 million compared to MADS of $9.2 million (payable In
fiscal 2023).

USE OF PROCEEDS

Proceeds of the Series 2019A and Series 20198 bonds will be used to fund the project costs for Campus
Instructional Facility for the College of Engineering and a new Feed Technology Center for the Callege of
Agricultural, Consumer and Environmental Sclences, both on the Urbana-Champaign campus, capltalized
interest and issuance cosis.

PROFILE

University of lllinois benefits from national market position as lllinols' flagship and Land Grant University and a
member of the Big Ten Academic Alliance. One of the nation's largest comprehensive universities, total
revenues exceed $5.2 billion in fiscal 2018. U of | reports over 85,000 students for falt 2018 at its Urbana-
Champaign, Chicago, and Springfield campuses. It also has an extensive healthcare operation that includes
an academic madical center and multiple health clinics In Chicago.

METHODOLOGY

The principal methodology used In these ratings was Higher Education published in December 2017. Please
see the Rating Methodologies page on www.moodys.com for a copy of this methodology.

REGULATORY DISCLOSURES

For ratings issued on a program, series or category/class of debt, this announcement provides certain
regulatory disclosures in relation to each rating of a subsequently issued bond or note of the same series or
category/class of debt or pursuant to a program for which the ratings are derived exclusively from existing
ratings In accordance with Moody's rating practices. For ratings issued on a support provider, this
announcement provides certain regulatory disclosures in relation to the credit rating action on the support
provider and In relation to each particular credit rating action for securities that derive thelr credit ratings from
the support provider's credit rating. For provisional ratings, this announcement provides certain regulatory
disclosures in relation to the provisional rating assigned, and in relation to a definitive rating that may be
assigned subsequent to the final issuance of the debt, in each case where the transaction structure and terms
have not changed prior to the assignment of the definitive rating in a manner that would have affected the
rating. For further information please see the ratings tab on the issuerfentity page for the respective issuer on
www.moodys.com.

Regulatory disclosures contained in this press release apply to the credit rating and, if applicable, the related
rating outlook or rating review.

Please see www.moodys.com for any updates on changes to the lead rating analyst and to the Moody's legal
entity that has issued the rating.

Please see the ratings tab on the issuer/entity page on www.moodys.com for additional regulatory disclosures
for each credit rating.
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University of Illinois, IL
Update to credit analysis

Summary

University of lllinois (U of 1, A1 stable) strong credit profile reflects its excellent liquidity and
significant market strength driving continued enrollment growth and substantive research
activity. The university has a very good strategic positioning as the state’s flagship and land
grant university in the Big Ten Academic Alliance. A key credit challenge is the university's
material operating reliance on the State of illinois (Baa3 stable). The fiscal 2020 budget is
not yet finalized and the ultimate outcome for the amount of direct operating appropriations
still to be determined. Another concern, although not currently proposed, is the potential
shifting over time of responsibility for post-retirement benefit costs to the university.

Extubit 1
Very strong financial reserves supporting debt
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Credit strengths

» Excellent liquidity, with $2.7 billion for fiscal 2018 (ending June 30) projected to be higher for fiscal year-end 2019
» Material scale and reputation as a flagship, land grant and large Big Ten public research university

» Strong debt service coverage by pledged revenues independent of state funding

» Notable fundraising with $191 million of average gift revenue for fiscal 2016-2018

» Moderate leverage, with debt service representing less than 3% of operating expenses

Credit challenges

» Relatively high exposure to uncertain state funding at 399 of fiscal 2018 revenues for operating, pension, and other post retirement
benefit payments

» Exposure to health care risks through ownership and operation of University of lllinois Health Services Facilities System {HSFS, Baal
stable)

» Growing capital needs following muttiple years of constrained capital investment relative to national peers

Rating outlook

The stable outlook reflects expectations that University of lilinois will maintain very good liquidity and strong operating performance to
provide a sufficient cushion to cope with the possibility of reduced or delayed state funding. It also incorporates our expectation that
any shift to U of 1 of payment responsibility for annual pension costs will be over a medium to longer term, providing sufficient time for
it to adjust operations to absorb the additional cash outlay.

Factors that could lead to an upgrade

» Multi-year material improvement in the state's fiscal condition resulting in greater predictability in the amount and timing of state
support

» Substantial growth in balance sheet reserves to mitigate exposure to volatile or declining state funding

Factors that could lead to a downgrade
» Material weakening of liquidity or inability to maintain sound operating performance
» Substantial, sustained decline in directly paid state operating support or benefits provided through "on behalf* payments

» Material adverse changes in federal funding for research or health care reimbursemnent

=

» Weaker pledged revenue coverage of the AFS, South Campus or HSFS bonds

This publication doas ot announas a tredit rating action. For any credit ratings teferenced In this publication, plaase see the ratings tah oo tife issues/zntity page on
weiipbdys:com for the mast updateq aredit rating action lpfmmathn-jand rating history,
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Key indicators

Exchibit 2
UNIVERSITY OF ILLINOIS, IL
2018
m? "::“;;?: Samhzls:t: Median: A
20144 2018 2018 2017 2018 AFS bonds Serlen 2040 Rated Public
lasusd post Leaso m:onmu: Univaraltiss
FYE
Yol FTE Envoliment e 78,229 @025z B1722 83680 5743 85743 68 43 10184
"Oparating Revenue ($000) B L 5,365,340 5545000 5267758 641567 6704238 6764288 076423 212722
Annual Change In Opersiing Revenue (%) ) 12 3¢ 50 129 T13r7 137 187 T
Jotal Cash & Investmerto (6000) 4802268 4801002 4285877 4571542 6376800 5376893 5376808 178,804
Tolal Debt {§000) o ) 1,794 326 1663652 1618452 1623036 1425310 4507450 1541047 139,570
Spendabls Cash & Investmenta to Tl Debt () 20 T 22 20 23 28 26 27 08
‘Spendable Cash & investments to Operating Expenses () ) 07 07 “os 06 07 07 07 “oe
Monthy Days Cashon Hand (x) T e 186 159 149 171 7 i 140
‘Operdting Cash Flow Mergin (%) Tua sz 18 83 145 148 148 103
“Total Debt to Cash Flow (x) o - a0 82 183 4 4 18 15 es
Annual Dabi Servios Coveraga (4 50 a9 07 24 6.2 82 62 18

2018 Sensitivitles include debt repayment and Serles 2018 Issued after June 30, 2018
Total FTE Enrotiment Is for fall of indicated year
Source: Moody's investors Service

Profile

University of lllinis benefits from a national market position as lllinols' flagship and Land Grant University and a member of the Big
Ten Academic Alliance. One of the nation's largest comprehensive universities, total revenues exceed $5.2 billion in fiscal 2018. U
of | reports over 85,000 students for fall 2018 at its Urbana-Champaign, Chicago, and Springfield campuses. It also has an extensive
healthcare operation that includes an academic medical center and multiple health clinics in Chicago.

Detailed credit considerations

Market profile: Big Ten flagship university with strong student demand and well-positioned research

University of lllinois derives significant market strength from its international reputation as a large research university with strong
science and engineering programs. This contributes to the university's demonstrated ability to grow tuition, auxiliary, philanthropic and
research revenue streams independent of state support. U of | is a member of the Big Ten Academic Alliance and one of the largest
universities in the nation. tt reported record enroliment of over 85,000 students for fall 2018, over 2,000 higher than the prior year. U
of I's diversified undergraduate and graduate programs and the significant draw contribute to overall enrollment stability and good net
tuition revenue.

With about $1 billion in research expenditures, U of | is one of the nation’s leading research universities. Research sponsors are diverse,
with Health and Human Services {HHS) and National Science Foundation (NSF) the largest sponsoring agencies. U of | has contingency
plans and operational flexibility to cope with some reductions in federal research funding.

U of | has exposure to health care risks through HSFS, including with its ownership and operation of University of Ilinois Hospital, a
major medical center in Chicago with over $700 million in net patient revenues. The hospital is a tertiary clinicat service provider in the
highty competitive and fragmented Chicago market. The hospital's operations results in additional state reliance with about 40% of
gross patient revenues paid by Medicaid. HSFS projects pasitive operations for fiscal 2018, including some one-time revenue items, and
days cash is up from the payment of receivables from Medicaid Managed Care plans.
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Operating performance: higher 2018 cash flow from improved state funding including payment of remalning 2017
appropriations; significant scale and good revenue diversity

University of Illinois has significant operating scale, with over $7 billion of operating revenue in fiscal 2018 providing operating
flexibility to adjust operations as needed. Still, its reliance on state funding for operations and on behalf payments results in operating
volatility. Fiscal 2018 operating cash flow margin of 15% is much stronger than weaker operations in fiscals 2016 and 2017 from the
receipt of only partial state appropriations. U of I's leadership acted to constrain and defer expenses to stabilize cash flow as it could

Wealth and liquidity: liquidity key credit factor

University of lllinois' balance sheet reserves will continue to provide notable independent financial strength. Spendable reserves showed
strong growth in fiscal 2018 to $5.4 biltion from $4.6 billion in 2017, driven in part by the resumption of appropriation payments and
the receipt of the remaining 2017 appropriations. Fiscal 2018 spendable cash and investments, including the foundation, were $4.2
billion, up from $3.4 billion for fiscal 2017 and representing nearly 80% of total cash and investments.

The university has demonstrated exceflent fundraising. It is conducting a $3.2 billion comprehensive campaign targeted to end in 2022,
with more than half received in pledges and gifts to date. This will drive future investment growth as pledge payments are received.

Liquidity

Liquidity is a key credit factor supporting the credit quality of University of Iitinois. U of | reported $2.7 billion of unrestricted operating
funds for fiscal year-end june 30, 2018, up from $2.3 billion. Management projects higher liquidity for the June 30, 2018 fiscal year-
end. This liquidity amply provides tJ of | the operating cushion to cope with any delays or reductions in fiscal 2020 state funding. -

Leverage: manageable leverage including near-term capital plans

U of I's total $1.54 billion pro forma debt is manageable relative to its operations and balance sheet reserves. Fiscal 2018 spendable
cash and investments cushion pro forma debt 2.7x, with 1.5x pro forma debt to cash flow. Currently U of | has plans to issue during
fiscal 2019 about $55 million of AFS bonds for the renovation of UIUC student housing. It is also considering other campus capital
projects in varying stages of review and approval. When combined with planned principal repayment, likely debt issuance in fiscals
2019-2020 will have minimal impact on its leverage profile.

Debt structure

Less than 2% of U of I's debt, or the Series 2008 South Campus bonds, is variable rate debt supported by a bank letter of credit (LOC).
The bank facility has a term-out period greater than one year in the event of a draw on the facility due to a failed remarketing. All other
debt is fixed rate and amortizing.

Legal security

The Academic Facilities Lease Revenue Bonds are secured by lease payments paid by University of lllinois directly to the bond trustee to
fund debt service. U of I's lease can be terminated in the event of non appropriation in the budget and absence of other legally available
non-appropriated funds. The base rent is not subject to diminution, abatement, suspension or other reductions. The payments are from
legally available non-appropriated funds, similar to the COPs. There is no debt service reserve fund. The trustee will have a mortgage
lien on PG-UIUC's interest from the leases on the two facilities. If the university fails to pay the lease payments when due, PG-UIUC
can accelerate U of ['s lease payments 1o fully redeem the outstanding bonds. PG-UILC has irrevocably appointed U of | as attorney

in fact in the event of default and the university can assume full controt. Given U of I's ample legally available non-appropriated funds
comprised largely of student net tuition and fees, no distinction is currently made between the lease revenue bonds and the AFS
ratings.

The Auxiliary Facilities System bonds are payable from net revenue of the AFS system, which is a closed system not accessible to

fund general operating expenses, and student tuition and fees. There is an additional bonds test and a rate covenant that Net System
Revenues and Student Tuition and Fees to be at least 2.0x maximum annual net debt service. Fiscal 2018 pledged revenues were $1.29
billion and provide over 13x coverage of maximum annual net debt service,

The Certificates of Participation are payable from legally available non-appropriated funds on a subordinate basis from revenue pledged
to other bonds. U of | covenants to include the required debt serv.ce in its annual budget requests. The purchase contract and the
university's obligation to make instaliment payments can be terminated in the event of both non-appropriation by the state and the
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absence of other tegally available funds to pay debt service. Given U of I's ample legally available non-appropriated funds comprised
largely of student net tuition and fees, no distinction is currently made between the COPs and secured AFS ratings.

The South Campus Bonds are payable from the UIC South Campus Development Project, consisting of incremental taxes received

by the City of Chicago (Ba1 stable); student tuition and fees, subject to prior pledges; and funds on deposit in the Bond and fnterest
Sinking Fund Account, including deposits from legally available non-appropriated funds. Net proceeds from completed land sales
related to the project are also pledged to the 2003 Bonds. There Is a 110x rate covenant, including student tuition and fees after
providing for any Student Tuition and Fees subject to a prior pledge of other outstanding bonds. The real estate tax base of the project
area was frozen when designated as a TIF district and incremental tax revenue received from the newly developed or redeveloped
properties is pledged to the university through 2023, For fiscal 2018 coverage on the $8115 million Maximum Annual Debt Service was
0.62x from the TIF revenue atone and 1.1x including other transferred available funds and university funds.

The Health Services Facilities System bonds are secured by (1) net revenues of the system; {2) Medical Service Plan (MSP) revenues
(faculty practice plan), net of bad debt expense; and (3) College of Medicine net tuition revenue (subordinated to the pledge of tuition
and fees to the AFS Bonds). Although the health system revenues of $77 million provide the first source of security, the pledges from
MSP and the College of Medicine provide enhancement. The pledge of MSP revenues and medical school tuition is up to maximum
annual debt service Total fiscal 2018 pledged revenues totaled $339 million compared to MADS of $9.2 million (payable in fiscal
2023).

Debt-related derivatives
University of llinois has two interest rate swaps and HSFS is counterparty to one with a combined $61 million notional and no
collateral posting required, At june 30, 2018 the total mark-to-market value of the three swaps was a $3.2 million liability.

Pensions and OPEB

U of | currently benefits from the State of lllinois’ assumption of the funding and liability related to the state pension and retirement
benefits. These are recognized in revenues and expenses as “on behalf" payments. These costs rose every year, lowering the funding
available for direct operating appropriations.

As noted previously, the university faces exposure to the states severe and growing pressures associated with funding the retiree
benefits with growing unfunded liabilities. U of [ participates in the State Universities Retirement System (SURS), a multi-employer
defined benefit pension plan administered and primarily funded by the state. SURS has a $26 billion reported unfunded liability as of
June 30, 2018,

Since U of | is not currently obligated to independently contribute to SURS, its Moody's Adjusted Net Pension Liability (ANPL) net of
state on-behalf support is minimal. Any move to shift the pension expense to the public universities will result in pressured operating
cash flow. The impact would be particularly stronger if there is a short transition period or if the state fails to provide the offset funding.

The state is also paying for University of Illinois’ OPEB costs for most of its employees. Although not obligated to contribute for most
of the expense, effective fiscat 2018 U of | is reporting its proportionate share of the state's collective OPEB liability in its financial
statements. For june 30, 2018 the university reported a $1.34 billion liability on the consolidated financial statements. Though U of 1
reports the liability, there is no near-term anticipated reform for other benefits or a shift in OPEB costs. Any action by the state to shift
the OPEB costs to the university would be credit negative.

Governance and management: strong fiscal oversight

University of lllinois displays strong fiscal oversight, investing in key strategic academic, faculty and student initiatives while planning
and coping with constrained and delayed state funding. Proactive fiscal planning drove the favorabte operating cash flow, growth in
balance sheet reserves supporting debt and operations and its liquidity The university has excellent bondholder disclosure on EMIMA
and on its own website
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CHICAGC (S&P Global Ratings) March 186, 2018--56P Global Ratings has assigned
its 'A-' long-term rating to the Unlversity of Illinois Board of Trustees’
series 2018A auxiliary facilities system (AFS) revenue bonds issued on behalf
of the University of Illineis (UI). At the same time, 58P Global affirmed its
'A-' long-term rating on university's existing certificates of participation
(CoPs) and outstanding AFS revenue bonds. The outlook is stable.

We currently rate the state of Illinois 'gBB-' with a stable outlook. The 'A-'
rating on UI's bonds reflects our criteria and application of the supporting
government cap to the stand-alone credit profile, limiting the rating to three
notches above the state ratlng, so the university's final long-term rating 1s
A-

"We assessed the university's enterprise proflle as extremely strong,
characterized by 1ts large and growing enrollment, with moderate selectivity
and relatively stable matriculation, as well as its significant research
presence," said SkP Global Ratings credit analyst Ashley Ramchandani. We
assessed the university's financial profile as strong, characterized by
historically positive operating performance of both the university and the
auxiliary facilitles system, solid available resource ratios, and an overall
low and manageable pro forma maximum annual debt service (MADS) burden of
2.5%.

post issuance, total pro forma debt will be approximately $1.65 billion, with
a modest pro forma MADS burden of 2.5X of fiscal 2017 operating expenses.

The university is the flagship institution in I1llincis. It has three campuses
in Urbana-Champaign, Chicago, and Springfleld, as well as health profession
sites in Rockford and Peoria. It 1s a nationally ranked research-intensive
institution with total federal research expenditures of more than $300 million
annually on the three campuses.

"The stable outlook reflects our expectation that during our two-year outlook
period, the university's enrcllment will continue to grow at a moderate rate,
and operations will remain, at a minimum, positive on a cash basis,” added Ms.
Ramchandani. In addition, we anticipate UI will maintain a manageable debt
burden and financial resource ratiocs consistent with the rating. We also
expect the university to cover current AFS debt service through net auxiliary
income and to maintain MADS coverage at or near current levels. We believe it
has additional debt capacity at the current rating level.

certain terms used in this report, particularly certain adjectives used to
express our view on rating relevant factors, have specific meanings ascribed
to them in our criteria, and should therefore be read in conjunction with such
criteria. Please see Ratings Criteria at www,standardandpoors.com for further
information. Complete ratings information is available to subscribers of
Ratingsbirect at www.capitaliq.com. All ratings affected by this rating action
can be found on the S&P Global Ratings' public website at

www , standardandpoors.com. Use the Ratings search box located in the left

Primary Credit Anaiyst'AShley Ramchandant, Chicago (1) 312-233-7071;
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University of Illinois Board of Trustees
University of Illinois Health Services Facilities
System; Hospital; Joint Criteria

(Editor's Note: This report, originally published Oct. 31, 2018, is being republished with additional information on the
hospital's pension plan.}

Cpredit Profile

University of Hlinois Brd of Trustees, Iilinois
University of inois Hith Sves Fac Sys, lllinois
University of lllinois Brd of Trustees {University of 1linois Hith Svcs Fac Sys) hith svs facs sys rev rennovation & imp bnds

Long Term Rating A-/Stable Affirmed
Serles 2008

Unenhanced Rating A-(SPUR)/Stable Affirmed

Long Term Rating AA/A-1 Affirmed
Rationale

S&P Global Ratings affirmed its 'A-' long-term rating on the University of lilinois Board of Trustees' series 2013
revenue bonds and its ‘A~ underlying rating (SPUR) on the board's series 2008 revenue refunding bonds. At the same
time, S&P Global Ratings affirmed its 'AA/A-1' dual rating on the board's series 2008 and 1997B revenue refunding
bonds. The outlook is stable. All bonds were issued for the University of Illinois Health Services Facilities System
(UIHSFS).

We base the 'AA/A-1' rating on the application of our joint criteria and assurned low correlation. The rating's '‘AA’
long-term component is jointly based on the rating on the obligor, UIHSFS, and the long-term rating on the letter of
credit (LOC) provider, Wells Fargo Bank N.A. The rating's 'A-1' short-term component reflects solely the short-term
rating on Wells Fargo Bank.

The rating reflects UIHSFS' solid medical staff and continued support from the University of INlinois (U of ). The rating
also reflects the ample financial profile and the system reported stronger results in fiscal 2018, owing to the $22 million
in recovery of Medicaid managed care claims as well as §1 8 million in fiscal 2017 state appropriation funds. Overall,
this boosted liquidity to 115 days' cash on hand, and there are o near-term new money debt plans. UIHSFS has a
sizable capital plan for its IT system as well as a new ambulatory surgery center and specialty clinic to accommodate
growth in outpatient surgery cases. We expect a public-private partnership could fund the majority of the new
ambulatory surgery center. The rating also reflects the ample support provided by the pledge of the revenue of the
faculty practice plan and the tuition from the U of I College of Medicine.

The ‘A~ rating continues to reflect our view of:

ATTACHMENT 34
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. Essential service provider in primary service area, with over 17,000 admissions;
+ Continued U of | support for the UIHSFS, which provides training for the university's medical school on the Chicago
campus; and

. Additional bond security from the U of I College of Medicine's tuition and faculty practice plan revenue, which
totaled $307 million for fiscal 2017 and equaled 2.7x bonds payable cutstanding.

Partially offsetting the above strengths, in our view, are UIHSFS"

+ Reliance on special funding programs, such as disproportionate share;
« Continued light unrestricted reserves-to-cash; and

+ Competitive service area with declining inpatient usage.

Qutlook

The stable outlook reflects our view that UIHSFS plans to see its operations improve and generate more cash flow that
will support needed capital spending. The outlook also reflects a leadership team that has been stable the past few

years and is executing plans to improve operations.

Downside scenario

We are aware that UJHSFS has a need to invest sizable capital into its facility and IT system, so we would expect that
it will be able to exceed the plans it has set for the budget. However, if the system continues to show very little
operational growth and reports losses or break-even operations, or if funding from the state weakens, we could revise
the outlook to negative or lower the rating. In addition, we could lower the rating if there is a moderate decrease in

liquidity or increase in leverage.

Upside scenario
1f UTHSFS can raise and sustain its financial performance such that both its operating margin and EBITDA margin
were to improve while cash continued to grow, we could revise the outlook to positive or raise the rating.

Enterprise Profile: Strong

The Chicago area is very competitive, with several medical centers in the immediate service area, including Rush
University Medical Center and John H. Stroger Jr. Hospital of Cock County and other hospitals in the broader service
area, including Northwestern Memorial Hospital and the University of Chicago Medical Center. However, UIHSFS has
maintained a market share of almost 5%, based on the most recent information. Still, overall outpatient surgeries were
up 3% in fiscal 2018 and overall equivalent inpatient admissions increased 2% while inpatient surgeries continued to

decline.

Management
There have been some recent changes in the senior team. Michael Zenn was appointed CEO of Ul Hospital & Clinics
in February 2018, having previously served as CFO. Laurence Appel was appointed CFO as of February 2018, having
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previously been associate CFO.

Criteria

This management team has focused on improving operating performance through such steps as:

« Putting controls around physician and other related party agreements;

. Making decisions on operational throughput that helped improve overall productivity;

« Initiating revenue enhancement activities, including enhancements to volume and yield;

« Enacting plans to help save on the expenses in areas such as supplies; and

+ Cutting back on discretionary spending.

We continue to believe that the management team is taking appropriate steps to help improve system operations while

preparing for the changing landscape of health care.

Table 1

University of [llinois Heatth Services Facilities Systen

=12 months ended June 30—

1 -- Enterprise Statistics

~-Figcal year ended June 30--

2018 2017 2016 20185
PSA population 2,546,679 NA. 2,502,561 2,457,400
PSA market share (%) 45 N.A 4.6 49
Inpatient admissions 17,644 17,570 17,866 18,749
Equivalent inpatient admissions 36,455 35,857 36,461 36,980
Emergency visits 486,689 46,547 47,674 46,901
inpatient surgeries 4,860 5,052 7,112 7.148
Outpatient surgeries 10,142 9,812 8,879 8,185
Medicars case mix index 1.9800 2.0600 2.0800 1.5000
FTE employees 3,468 3,358 3,233 3,136
__Acti.ve physicians 824 N.A, 777 810
"Top 10 physicians admiasions (%)
Based on net/gross revenues Net Net Net N_et'-
Medicare (%) 24.0 25.0 23.0 25.0
Medicaid (%) - 440 41.0 40.0 39.0
Commercial /Biues (¥0) 26.0 29.0 30.0 33.0

Note: Inpatient admissions exclude normal newborn, psychiatric, rehabilitation, and long-term care facility admissions. PSA-Primary service

area. FTE--Full-time equivalent. N.A.—Not available.

Financial Profile: Adequate

UIHSFS' fiscal 2018 results were significantly improved and benefited from two one-time items--the $22 million in
recovery of Medicaid managed care claims and $18 million in fiscal 2017 state appropriation funds. This led to an
overall operating margin of 2.66% relative to 1.24% and 0.31% in fiscal years 2017 and 2016, respectively. Fiscal 2016
was softer because of the move to more Medicaid managed-care contracts. UIHSFS has moved its various Medicaid

managed-care contracts to diagnosis-related group (DRG) payments.
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As with other health care entities, payments from the state have continued to affect the system. It continues to receive
timely payments, but given its significant reliance on state support, there is continued uncertainty concerning this

funding source.

Management expects $6 million in operating income for fiscal 2019 and we note that there are some one-time costs
that include an estimated $12 million for the IT implementation project as well as $6 million in incremental operating

expense for the cancer institute.

Liquidity and financial flexibility

UIHSFS' balance sheet remains below rating category medians, specifically in terms of days' cash on hand (DCOH).
Given the increased state payments, DCOH increased to 115 from 94 in fiscal 2017 but we expect the system to spend
a portion of this given the upcoming capital projects, notably, the IT implementation. Unrestricted reserves partly
reflect the state's cap, but UTHSFS is not near the threshold, As of this analysis, we view cash on hand as just adequate
for the rating. Another area that hampers the system is the average age of plant, which we view as high.

However, UIHSFS has a sizable capital plan that totals about $379 million for the next five years and includes the new
ambulatory surgery center as well as an integrated information infrastructure project, including the IT implementation.
Management will fund the majority of the capital plan from internal cash flow, a public-private partnership,
philanthropy, and an internal loan with U of 1.

Debt and liabilities

Management has no near-term plans to issue new money debt, However, there are plans to build a new ambulatory
surgery center and specialty clinics facility. Overall, debt to capitalization is at the lower end of the peer group at
22.4%.

UIHSFS has the following contingent debt: 19978 and 2008 variable-rate demand bonds that have acceleration
provisions. However, there is sufficient liquidity to cover any potential acceleration payments given that 28% of
unrestricted reserves could be received in the same business day, and cover contingent liabilities 1,6x.

The university contributes to the State Universities Retirernent System of Illinois (SURS), a cost-sharing,
multiple-employer defined benefit plan with a special funding situation whereby the state makes substantially all
actuariatly determined required contributions on behalf of the participating employers. The amount of the
proportionate share to be recognized for UTHSFS has been zero.

The state passed legislation in 2017 to create a new hybrid pension plan option for SURS (Tier 111 plan) for newly hired
participants and some current SURS participants who elect to switch to the Tier 11l plan. As a result, some pension
costs for the hybrid plan's defined benefit portion will shift to UIHSFS phased in over several years. SURS has not yet
implemented the Tier IIl plan. After discussions with management, we expect that future Tier III contributions will be
manageable from a budgetary standpoint. The 2017 legislation also requires employers to pay the normal cost of the
portion of a SURS defined benefit participant's earnings that exceeds the amount of salary set for the Governor of
Ilinois. Management estimates pension payments of $150,000 for fiscal 2019 based on this change. However, we will

continue to monitor developments on changes as well as the Tier I1I plan’s implementation.
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Table 2

University of lllinois Health Services Facilities Sysite

~12 months ended

m -- Financial Statistics

Criteria

—Medians for 'A-* rated

June 30~ —Fiscal year ended June 30-- stand-alone hospitale—
2018 2017 2016 2015 2017

Financial performance
Nat patient revenue {$000s) 724,989 872,725 620,406 610,454 321,879
Total operating revenue ($000s) 763,261 739,464 687,737 73,903 MNR
Total operating expenses ($000s) 742,964 730,311 685,606 666,709 MNR
Operating income {$000s) 20,317 9,153 2131 7.194 MNR
Operating margin (%) 266 1.24 0.31 1.07 2.00
Net nonoperating income ($000s) 3,607 2,699 2,738 1,088 MNR
Excess incorne ($000s) 23,924 11,852 4,868 8,182 MNR
Excess margin (%) 3.12 1.80 0.71 1.36 4.10
Operating EBIDA margin (%) 6.05 4.61 3.93 405 8.70
EBIDA margin (%) 6.49 485 431 4.33 10.50
Net available for debt service (§000s) 49,785 35,752 28,734 29,277 38,756
Maximum annual debt service ($000s) 8,190 8,180 9,190 9,180 MNR
Maximum annua! debt service coverage (x) 5.42 4.00 3.24 3.18 3.90
Operating lease-adjusted coverage (x) 4.63 3.54 2.92 2.89 3.30
Liquidity and financial flexibility
Unrestricted reserves ($000s) 226,313 183,051 136,881 189,930 187,103
Unrestricted days' cash on hand 1145 94.2 75.1 107.0 233.10
Irg/n)restﬁcted reserves/total long-terr debt 214.0 167.2 120.0 158.0 165.40
%
Unrestricted reserves/contingent liabilities 596.0 4415 305.4 395.2 443.40
(%)
Average age of plant (years) 14.3 13.7 13.5 13.5 i 12.40
Capital expenditures/depreciation and 89.5 1552 842 70.2 108.30
arnortization (%)
Debt and Habilities
Total long-term debt ($000s) 105,748 109,450 114,100 119,461 MNR
Long-term debt/capitalization {%) 22.4 26.1 27.5 28.6 32.40
Contingent liabitities ($000s) 37,975 41,460 44,825 48,065 MNR
g}n?ﬁngent liabilities/total long-term debt 35.9 37.9 38.3 40.2 34.80

(]
Debt burden (%) 1.20 1.24 1.33 1.36 2.60
Defined-benefit plan funded status (%) N.A. NA. NA. NA, 83.80
MNR--Median not reported. N.A--Not available,
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Criteria

+ Security pledge: Although the U of I does not formally gusrantee UTHSFS' debt, net system revenue, the U of 1
College of Medicine's tuition receipts, and the U of I's faculty medical service plan revenue secure the bonds.

» Group rating methodology: Core. The 'A-' rating reflects our view of UIHSFS' group credit profile (GCP) and the
obligated group's core status, Accordingly, we rate the bonds at the same level as the GCP.

« Organization description: The UIHSFS comprises the University of lilincis Hospital and associated clinical
facilities providing patient care at the University of Illinois Medical Center. The system is a tertiary care facility
located in Chicago offering a full range of clinical services. It does not include the operations.of the U of I's
Medical Service Plans or Colleges of Medicine. U of [ is responsible for system management.

» Swaps: UIHSFS has one interest rate swap with a notional amount of about $26.4 million. It has no coilateral
posted and a negative mark to market of $1.9 million as of June 30, 2018.

ATTACHMENT 34
WAWW. STANDARDANDPODRS. COM/RATINGSDIRECT NOVEMBER 1, 2018 7

24



#2020-02

Copyright © 2018 by Standard & Poor's Financial Services LLC. All rights reserved.

No content [including ratings, credit-related analyses and data, valuations, madel, softwara or other apphication or output therefrom} or any part theraof {Contant) may be
modifisg, raverse anginesred, reproduced or distributed in any farm by any maans, of stored in a dstahase of retrieval system, withaut the prior written permission of
Standard & Poor's Financial Services LLC or its affiliates [cotlectively. S&P). The Content shall not be used for any unlawful of unauthorized purposes. S8F and any third-party
providers, as well as thelr directars, officers, shargholders, amployees or agents (collectively SKP Partios) do not guarantes the accuracy, completeness, timelingss or
availability of tha Content. S&P Parties are not responsible for any errors or omissions {negligent or atherwise), regardiess of the causa, for the results obtained fram the use
of the Content, ar far the security ar maintenance of any data input by the user. The Content is provided on an "as is” basis. S&P PARTIES DISCLAIM ANY AND ALL EXPRESS
OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, ANY WARRANTIES OF MEACHANTABILITY OR FITNESS £OR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE CR USE. FREEDOM
FROM BUGS, SOFTWARE ERRORS OR DEFECTS, THAT THE CONTENT'S FUNCTIONING WiLL BE UNINTERRUPTED OR THAT THE CONTENT WALL OPERATE WITH ANY
SOFTWARE OR HARDWARE CONFIGURATION. In no event shall SEP Parties be liable to any party for any direct. indirect. intidental, exemplary, compensatary, punitive,
special or consaguential damages, Costs, expenses, logal fees, or losses lincluding, without fimitation, lost incame o lost profits and opportunity costs or losses caused by
nagligance) in connection with any use of the Content even if advisad of the possibility of such damages.

Credit-related ang other analyses, including ratings, and stlatements in the Content are statements of epinion as of the date they ara expressed and not statements of fact.
S&P’s opinions, analyses and rating acknowladgment decisions (described below) are not racommendations to purchase, hold, or sell any securities or to make any
investment dacistons, and do not sddress the suitability of any sacurity. S&P assumes no abligation to update the Content following pubtieation in any form ot fermat. The
Corent should not ba relied on and is Aot a substitute for the skill, judgment and exparience of the user, its management, smployees, advisors and/or clients when making
invastment and other business decisions. S&P does not actas a fiduciary o an invastment advisor except whare registared as such. While S&F has obtained information from
sourcas it believes to be relisble, S&P does not perform an audit and yndentakes no duty of due diligance or independent varification of any information it receives, Rating-
related publications may be published for a variety of reasons that are not necassarily dapendent on action by rating committeas, including, but not limited %0, the publication
of & periodic updats on a credit rating and related analyses.

To the extent that reguiatory autharities allow a rating agency to acknawledge in one jurisdiction a rating issued in another jurisdiction for certain ragulatory purposes. S&p
resarvas the right to assign, withdraw o suspend such acknowledgment at any time and in its sola discretion. S&P Parties disclaim any duty whatsoever arising out of the
assignment, withdrawal or suspansion of an acknowledgment as well as any Hability for any damags allaged to have been suffered on account thereof.

S$&P keeps cartain activities of its business units separate from each other in order Lo preserve the independance and objectivity of their respactive activities. As a result,
certain business units of S&P may have information that is not available to other S&P business units. S&P has established palicies and procedures to mainkain the
confidentiality of certain non-public information racaivad in connection with each analytical process.

S&F may recaive compansation fer its ratings and certain analyses, normalty from issuers or underwriters of securities of {ram obligors. S&F reservas the right to disseminate
its opinions and analysss. S&P's public ratings and analyses are made available on its Web sites, www.standardandpoors.com {frae of chargel, and www.ratingsdirect.com
and www,globalcreditporial.com |subseription], end may be distribinad through other means, including via S&P publications andg third-party redistiibutors. Additional
information about our ratings fees is available at www.standardandpaors.comfusratingsiees.

STANDARD & PODR'S, S&P and RATINGSDIRECT ara registered trademarks of Standard & Poor’s Financial Services LLC.

ATTACHMENT 34

WAVW. STANDARCIANDPODRS. COM/RATING SDIRECT NOVEMBER 1, 2018 8

79



#2020-02

University of Illinols Hospltal & Clinics
1740 W Taylor Stree!
Suite 1400, M/C 693

skl Health @

. .. . Phone 312 908 3900
Hospital Administration Fax 312-996-7049

December 10, 2019

Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 West Jefferson Street, 2nd Floor
Springfield, illinois 62761

To Whom It May Concern:

| hereby attest that the total estimated project costs associated with University of lllinois Medical Center
at Chicago’s lobby project to be reviewed by the llinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board will be
addressed through the use of cash and other liquid assets.

Sincerely,

Bokfy™

David H. Loffing
Chief Operating Officer

JAY T ELENGICAL
OFFICIAL SEAL
'\ } Notary Publlc, State of Iinols
g ﬁlp‘ My Commission Expires
s October 10, 2023
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PROJECTED OPERATING COSTS

and
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TOTAL EFFECT OF THE PROJECT ON CAPITAL COSTS

University of lllinois Medical Center at Chicago
2nd Year Following Project Completion

Projected Adj. Pt. Days: 1,914,922,913
5,017 381,684

Year 2 OPERATING COST per ADJUSTED PATIENT DAY

Salaries & Benefits $9,034,000
Medical Supplies $30,362,000
$39,396,000

per Adjusted Patient Day: $ 103.22

YEAR 2 CAPITAL COST per ADJUSTED PATIENT DAY

Interest, Dep. & Amort 5 6,551,000

per Patient Day: S 17.16

z=
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After paginating the entire completed application indicate, in the chart below, the page numbers for the
included attachments:

ATTACHMENT
NO.

INDEX OF ATTACHMENTS

Applicant Identification including Certificate of Good Standing

Site Ownership

N =

Persons with 5 percent or greater interest in the licensee must be

identified with the % of ownership.

Organizational Relationships (Organizational Chart) Certificate of

Good Standing Etc.

Flood Plain Reguirements

Historic Preservation Act Requirements
Project and Sources of Funds ltemization

Financial Commitment Document if required

Cost Space Requirements

Discontinuation

11 | Background of the Applicant

_Purpose of the Project

Alternatives to the Project
Size of the Proiect
Project Service Ulilization

Unfinished or Shell Space

Assurances for Unfinished/Shell Space

Service Specific:

Medical Surgical Pediatrics, Obstetrics, ICU

Comprehensive Physical Rehabilitation

Acute Mental lliiness

Open Heart Surgery

Cardiac Catheterization

In-Center Hemodialysis

Non-Hospital Based Ambulatory Surgery

Selected Oroan Transplantation

Kidney Transplantation

Subacute Care Hospital Model

Community-Based Residential Rehabilitation Center

Long Term Acute Care Hospital

Clinical Service Areas Other than Categories of Service

Freestanding Emergency Center Medical Services

Birth Center

Financial and Economic Feasibility:

Availability of Funds

Financial Waiver

Financial Viability

39

Economic Feasibility

100

Safety Net Impact Statement

Charity Care Information

/37
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Axel & Associates, Inc.

MANAGEMENT CONSULTANTS

by FedEX
January 2, 2020

Ms. Courtney Avery

Administrator

Illinois Health Facilities and
Services Review Board

525 West Jefferson

Springfield, IL 62761

Dear Ms. Avery:

Enclosed please find two copies of a Certificate of Need (“CON™) application
addressing University of Illinois Medical Center at Chicago’s lobby project.

The application is accompanied by a check, in the amount of $2,500.00, as a filing

fee.
Should any additional information be required, please do not hesitate to contact
me.
Sincerely,
Jacob M. Axel
resident
enclosures
675 North Court, Suite 210 Phone {847) 776-7101

Palatine, lllinois 60067 Fax (847) 776-7004





